
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Greg Elgin 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, February 21, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER     
 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                             Hon. John Wright, Jr. 

 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                                                                                            February 7, 2023                                                                                                             
                           

 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                        Agenda Matters Only  
 
 
 
5. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: 
    
    a. 2023-003: An Ordinance authorizing the transfer of certain real properties located within Anderson County, 
       South Carolina which were a part of the neighborhood initiative program to the Nehemiah Community 

Revitalization Corporation; and other matters related thereto. 
 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

    b. 2023-004: An Ordinance to sell a parcel of real property to Anderson School District 3; and other matters 
related thereto. 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
6. ORDINANCE SECOND READING: None 
 
     
7. ORDINANCE FIRST READING:     

 
    a. 2023-005: An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business  
        park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

    
    b. 2023-006: An Ordinance to lease real property to Habitat for Humanity of Anderson County, Inc; and other 

matters related thereto. 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes)                                                            



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, February 21, 2023 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

                                                                                                                
   8. RESOLUTIONS:   
 
    a. 2023-006: A Resolution authorizing pursuant to Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 

1976, as amended, the execution and delivery of an amendment to that certain amended & restated fee-in-lieu of 
ad valorem taxes and economic development agreement, by and between Anderson County, South Carolina, 
TTI Consumer Power Tools, Inc. (formerly One World Technologies, Inc.) as sponsor, and certain sponsor 
affiliates; and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

 
9. APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 

COUNTY AND HARTWELL RESORT, LLC 
   Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
10. TRANSFERS                                                                                                     Mrs. Rita Davis (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

 
11. REQUEST BY COUNCIL:  
      a. Vets Helping Vets Anderson, SC-District 5 
      b. SC State Chili Cook-off Championship-All Districts 
      c. Council transfer to Finance 
 
 
12. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT: 
      a. Building and Codes Report 
      b. Budget Transfers 
      c. Paving 
          d. Special Projects 
 
 
13. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                       Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
14. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

FEBRUARY 7, 2023

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
JOHN WRIGHT 
GREG ELGIN
BRETT SANDERS
JIMMY DAVIS
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - February 7, 2023
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
2 I’d like to call to order the February 7th special
3 presentation meeting to order.  I’d like to welcome
4 each and every one of y’all here tonight and thank
5 y’all for coming and participating in your local
6 government.  
7 We’re going to start off with the -- and just for
8 the record, on this part here, too, Councilman Glenn
9 Davis is not going to be able to attend.
10 Moving on, we’re going to move on to item
11 Resolutions and Proclamations 2(a), 23-004, a
12 Resolution to congratulate Emily DeRoberts upon the
13 occasion of her retirement from Duke Energy and to
14 express gratitude for her lifetime of service to the
15 community; and other matters related thereto.
16 Whereas, Emily DeRoberts is an Upstate native and
17 graduate of Wren High School, the Greenville Technical
18 College Associate Electrical Engineering Technology
19 program, and Southern Wesleyan University, where she
20 earned a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
21 and a master’s degree in Management Science; and
22 Whereas, Ms. DeRoberts is retiring from her role as
23 District Manager for Government and Community Relations
24 at Duke Energy in South Carolina and has been a
25 dedicated employee for the past three decades while
26 also serving on the Upstate S.C. Alliance executive
27 board, Anderson Area Chamber of Commerce board of
28 directors, Anderson Interfaith Ministries board, and
29 the Anderson University board of visitors; and
30 Whereas, Ms. DeRoberts has been a vital partner to
31 Anderson County in a host of endeavors for many years
32 and will continue to be for many years in the future.
33 Therefore, be it resolved that, in a meeting duly
34 assembled this 7th day of February 2023, the Anderson
35 County Council hereby offers its warmest
36 congratulations on retirement and its gratitude to Ms.
37 DeRoberts for her lifetime of service to Anderson
38 County.
39 Put that in the form of a motion
40 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
42 Jimmy Davis.
43 CINDY WILSON:  Everybody
44 seconds it.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Everybody
46 seconds it.  Open the floor up for discussion.  Does
47 anybody have any?
48 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, if I
49 may?
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Jimmy



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - February 7, 2023
3

1 Davis.
2 JIMMY DAVIS:  I just want to
3 congratulation Ms. DeRoberts and all that she is and
4 all that she does.  She is a true champion for Anderson
5 County.  She’s spends countless hours performing her
6 duties and she is a wonderful communicator and I can’t
7 say how much I’m really going to miss you, but I know
8 David is going to be glad.  Maybe your golf game will
9 improve and y’all can play golf every other day.  Or
10 David, you may not want that; I’m not sure.
11 But she has been a great, great source of
12 information for me as I’ve learned my way around
13 Council.  And I greatly appreciate all that you’ve ever
14 done.  And I know I speak for all of District 6 and all
15 the Wren graduates.  We’re very proud of you. 
16 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
18 Davis.  Anyone else?
19 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Chairman?
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders.
21 BRETT SANDERS:  I just want to
22 second by Councilman Davis said and thank Ms. DeRoberts
23 for all her help and support and love that she’s shown
24 this county.  And it shows in everything that you have
25 done for us and our partnership together.  And I’d also
26 like to thank Duke Energy for all that they do.
27 Thank you.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
29 Ms. Wilson.
30 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
31 Chair.  Emily, I don’t want to tell you goodbye, so
32 hopefully we’ll see you around.  
33 Emily DeRoberts has been such an awesome role model
34 for young women in our county.  And she’s been such a
35 blessing on many levels to this county.  And Duke
36 Energy, what a legacy we have with Duke.  We’re just so
37 grateful to you and the company you’ve worked for.
38 Thank you.  Wish you the best in retirement.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
40 Councilman Wright.
41 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
42 Chairman.  I just want to echo everybody’s comments.  I
43 don’t want to overstate, but just I’ve had the
44 opportunity to work with Ms. DeRoberts on a number of
45 occasions.  Served on several boards with her and other
46 community engagements, and she has been such a vital
47 piece of Anderson County and everything that we’ve
48 accomplished, and Duke Energy in providing excellent
49 service and utilities to Anderson County as we continue
50 to grow.  It’s so important.  So just appreciate your



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - February 7, 2023
4

1 service and help over the years.  And wish you all the
2 best in retirement.  Thank you.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
4 Councilman Elgin.
5 GREG ELGIN:  Ms. DeRoberts,
6 again, I didn’t get to work with you long, but I wanted
7 to wish congratulations out here in public.  So I know
8 it’s well deserved.  Get some rest.  And hopefully we
9 look forward to seeing you around.  Thank you again,
10 and congratulations.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. DeRoberts,
12 I just want to thank you for what all you’ve done for
13 the citizens of Anderson County.  We’re going to miss
14 you.  I hate you’re leaving us, but I know you deserve
15 it.  Look forward to you; hope you have a happy thing. 
16 What I don’t understand, you’ve always been a go-to
17 person for Duke Energy.  If you couldn’t, you always
18 got us the answer and got us in touch with the right
19 person.  You had a big part in the great economic
20 development boom we’ve had in Anderson County in the
21 last 14, 15 years.  You’ve always been great to work
22 with.  I can’t say it’s always been that way in the
23 past with some other folks, so we really do appreciate
24 what all you’ve done for the county and how great
25 you’ve treated us and we’re going to miss you and wish
26 you nothing but the best.
27 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
28 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
29 unanimously. 
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Burns.
31 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
32 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
33 APPLAUSE
34 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
35 move on now to item number 2(b), Resolution 2023-005. 
36 Honorable Cindy Wilson; Council Lady Wilson.  Ms.
37 Wilson.
38 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
39 Chairman.  This is exciting to recognize this wonderful
40 young -- two young men.
41 This is a resolution to congratulate Collin Smith
42 and Brady Kimbrell for winning the 2022 Bass Pro Shops
43 Bassmaster Team Championship; and other matters related
44 thereto.
45 Whereas, Mr. Collin Smith, an Anderson County
46 employee in the Facilities Department, and Mr. Brady
47 Kimbrell constituted the 5 Alive Sunday Series team,
48 which won the 2022 Bass Pro Shops Team Championship on
49 Lake Hartwell in December with a two-day total of 30
50 pounds, 13 ounces, advancing to the Bassmaster Classic



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - February 7, 2023
5

1 Fish-Off; and
2 Whereas, Mr. Smith and Mr. Kimbrell, both Anderson
3 natives, held off a 250-team field in the Team
4 Championship in tough fishing conditions of a warming
5 trend and dense fog and that shortened the time
6 available for fishing; and
7 Whereas, the team advanced to the Fish-Off for the
8 Bassmaster Classic where Mr. Smith then qualified for
9 the upcoming 2023 Academy Sports + Outdoors Bassmaster
10 Classic, which will be held March 24th through March
11 26th on the Tennessee River in Knoxville, Tennessee.
12 Therefore, be it resolved that, in a meeting duly
13 assembled this 7th day of February 2023, the Anderson
14 County Council hereby offers its congratulations to Mr.
15 Smith and Mr. Kimbrell for their accomplishments,
16 thanks them for representing Anderson County so well on
17 the national and international stage and wishes Mr.
18 Smith the best of luck as he fishes in the Super Bowl
19 of Bass Fishing, the 2023 Bassmaster Classic!
20 And may I put that in the form of a motion.
21 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
23 second.  I think everybody seconds that motion.  Open
24 the floor up for discussion.  Anyone have any comments?
25 I’d just like to congratulation y’all.  Thank y’all
26 very much for representing Anderson County very, very
27 well.  And good luck and hope you bring home the big
28 one.  Thank y’all.  Anyone else?
29 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
30 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
31 unanimously.
32 CINDY WILSON:  And if we may
33 have Mr. Smith and his family and Mr. Kimbrell down
34 front.
35 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
36 APPLAUSE 
37 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time,
38 we’d like to move on to Proclamation 2(c), this is a
39 proclamation from all Council members and Mr. Sanders
40 is going to introduce this.  Councilman Sanders.
41 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
42 Chairman.  
43  This is a Proclamation designating February 2023 as
44 Black History Month in Anderson County.
45 WHEREAS, Black History Month, observed in February
46 of each year, honors, affirms, and emphasizes the
47 significance of Black history and the many
48 contributions of African Americans to American life,
49 society, and culture, as we know it; and
50 WHEREAS, Black History Month provides an



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - February 7, 2023
6

1 opportunity for all Americans to reflect on the rich
2 history and achievements of people of African descent;
3 and
4 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Human Relations
5 Council, the local NAACP chapter, the local
6 African-American churches, and many individuals
7 throughout Anderson County foster civic, economic, and
8 educational programs that bear witness to the progress,
9 beauty, and achievements of African Americans in
10 Anderson County; and
11 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council sets aside
12 this special time to acknowledge African Americans in
13 Anderson County past and present.
14 NOW, THEREFORE, the Anderson County Council does
15 hereby proclaim the month of February 2023 as BLACK
16 HISTORY MONTH in Anderson County, encouraging all
17 residents to recognize the importance of black history
18 throughout our county, participating in countywide
19 activities that promote unity for the betterment of our
20 communities, celebrating the diversity and character of
21 our community, and highlighting the importance of
22 sharing our culture and customs as the County observes
23 and commemorates Black History Month.
24 Proclaimed this, the 7th day of February 2023.  
25 And I put that in the form of a motion, sir.
26 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
27 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders, I
29 think that’s also going to be seconded by all Council
30 members.  Open the floor up for any discussion. 
31 I’d just like to say before we vote, we’ve got a
32 Human Relations Council of Anderson County on the front
33 row.  We’re going to present this to them.  We
34 appreciate what all y’all do for Anderson County and
35 for our citizens.  Y’all really do us proud.  I know
36 it’s a thankless job.  Don’t get thanks enough, but we
37 really do appreciate what y’all do.
38 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
39 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
40 unanimously. 
41 PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION
42 APPLAUSE
43 TOMMY DUNN:   I want to take
44 this opportunity, too, as we make our way back.  I want
45 to give a shout-out for Council for Seth Ridley who is
46 our liaison from Council and also the Administrator’s
47 Office and does a great job working with them.  And we
48 appreciate that.
49 This part of our Council meeting will be over. 
50 We’re going to reconvene here back at 6:30 to start our



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - February 7, 2023
7

1 regular Council meeting.
2
3 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:15 P.M.)



8

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

FEBRUARY 7, 2023

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
JOHN WRIGHT 
GREG ELGIN
BRETT SANDERS
JIMMY DAVIS
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
9

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
2 I’d like to call the Anderson County Council meeting of
3 February the 7th to order.  I’d like to welcome each
4 one of you here and thank you all for coming out and
5 participating in your local government.  
6 To start off, first of all, Councilman Glenn Davis
7 is not going to be able to make it.  He’s out of town.
8 So that's the reason that seat is empty.  He won’t be
9 here.
10 At this time I'll ask Councilman Wright if he’ll
11 lead us in the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance,
12 please.  All rise.
13 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JOHN WRIGHT
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have any
15 changes or corrections to be made -- moving on to item
16 number 3, approval of the minutes of the January 17th
17 Council meeting.  Do we have any corrections or changes
18 that needs to be made?
19 Seeing none, do we have a motion to them forward?
20 Motion by Ms. Wilson to move them forward.  Do we
21 have a second?
22 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Second
24 Councilman Wright.
25 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
26 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
27 unanimously.
28 We’re going to move on now to item number 4,
29 citizens comments.  I’ll explain a couple of things
30 before I get into that.  As attorney Thayer calls your
31 name, please, when you step forward, state your name
32 and your district.  If you don’t know your district,
33 Council district, at least a road.  That’s for our
34 record.  You’ve got three minutes on agenda items only
35 this first go-around.  You address the chair.  And
36 Council, this is all per our ordinance book.  It’s been
37 like this.  This ain’t a town hall meeting.  We don’t
38 answer questions.  We listen.  
39 Mr. Thayer.
40 JORDAN THAYER:  Mr. Chairman,
41 the first name on the list is David Walker.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Walker.
43 DAVID WALKER:  I think I was
44 listed under here for the Long Road project.  I may
45 have put my name on the wrong place.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   No, sir.  Let
47 me explain.  You’ve got three minutes for public
48 comments, anything on the agenda, to sign up with.  At
49 the end of the meeting you’ve got three minutes,
50 anything that ain’t on the public agenda.  Some



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
10

1 citizens, a group called and asked to be put on the
2 agenda for a 15 minute presentation, and that’s on
3 there.
4 DAVID WALKER:  That’s what I’m
5 here for.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   For the 15
7 minute presentation?  You’re fine.  Okay.  You don’t
8 sign up for that.  You’re already on the agenda.  Got
9 part of that 15 minute agenda.
10 JORDAN THAYER:  Mr. Chairman,
11 the next name on the list is Brent Elrod.
12 BRENT ELROD:  I don’t need to
13 speak.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Move on.
15 JORDAN THAYER:  Your Honor,
16 that is all the names on the agenda items.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Thank
18 y’all.
19 We’re going to move on now then to item number 5. 
20 This is going to be the APWA Public Works Re-
21 accreditation presentation.  And this is going to be
22 from the APWA President Mr. Keith Pugh.  Mr. Pugh, Mr.
23 Hopkins? 
24 HOLT HOPKINS:  Thank you, Mr.
25 Chairman, members of Council, we just -- we're here to
26 just say thanks for supporting us and helping us get
27 accredited.  But this film is from the president of the
28 National American Public Works Association.  And I'll
29 play that and we'll talk on it a little bit more. 
30 VIDEO PRESENTATION
31  KEITH PUGH:  Hello, I'm
32 Keith Pugh, President of the American Public Works
33 Association.  The purpose of our accreditation program
34 is to provide a means to formally verify and recognize
35 Public Works agencies for compliance with the
36 Recommended Practices set forth in the Public Works
37 management practices manual.  This is a voluntary and
38 self-motivated program.  Accredited agencies have made
39 the commitment to continuous improvement in the
40 delivery of Public Works operations and services in the
41 community it serves.  And those accredited agencies
42 have achieved a high level of professionalism and
43 credibility.  
44 The Anderson County Public Works division was
45 initially accredited in 2010, and is one of five
46 accredited agencies in the state of South Carolina. 
47 Overall, there are 178 accredited agencies.  For the
48 re-accreditation process, an evaluation team consisting
49 of experienced Public Works professionals reviewed 149
50 departmental practices to confirm their continued



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
11

1 compliance with internationally recognized management
2 practices applicable to the agency's operations and
3 responsibilities.  I'm proud to report, the county
4 receive full compliance for their practices.  
5 I would like to thank Council Chair Dunn, and all
6 members of the Anderson County Council for investing in
7 such a worthwhile program.  Your support demonstrates
8 your continued desire to ensure your community is being
9 operated and managed in an efficient manner consistent
10 with industry best management practices.  I'd also like
11 to thank Public Works Director Holt Hopkins, and
12 Accreditation Manager Brittany Burdette for their
13 willingness to lead the department to this level of
14 recognition.  This commitment to continuous improvement
15 follows along with my late father's philosophy of
16 leaving things better than you found them.  
17 So with that, I'm proud to present the Anderson
18 County Public Works division with re-accreditation. 
19 Congratulations.  Great work.  
20 HOLT HOPKINS:  Mr. Chairman,
21 we're very proud of this recognition.  But it tells
22 everybody around us what a bunch of professionals we
23 have working in our Public Works Division.  I would
24 like everybody that's here that works in the Public
25 Works Division to please stand up and remain standing. 
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Give them a
27 hand.
28 APPLAUSE
29 HOLT HOPKINS:   We couldn't do
30 this without the professionals that you have on the
31 staff of the Public Works Division in all the different
32 departments.  This is just a small sampling, but
33 there's about 150, 200 employees that this represents. 
34 So we're very proud of our staff.  And I want to
35 thank each one of them.  And I want to thank Brittany
36 for heading up the charge.  She spent a lot of
37 sleepless nights trying to get it all done on time. 
38 Brittany, you want to say anything?
39 BRITTANY BURDETTE:  I want to say
40 thank you to the Council for supporting us and getting
41 this re-accreditation and thankful to all of the
42 departments.  A lot of this fell on the department
43 manager and the office managers of each department and
44 they did a ton of work to cross every T, dot every I
45 and make sure this accreditation came through.  
46 HOLT HOPKINS:    That's all.
47 Thank you.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Y’all please
49 sit down.  I just want to take this minute from council
50 to thank each and every one of y'all for the



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
12

1 outstanding job y'all do for the citizens of Anderson
2 County.  It's been a trying year this past year; the
3 storms and weather we've had and other things and y'all
4 have answered the call.  And y'all are the reason it
5 makes the council look good.  And don’t know how many
6 comments I get from citizens about interacting with a
7 county employee in public works department, they’re
8 professional, nice, and try to find a way to fix their
9 problem anyway possible, and they appreciate it.  
10 And we really appreciate the days that Matt works. 
11 Matt, we thank you the days you’re there to help work.
12 Ms. Wilson.  
13 CINDY WILSON:  Well, also
14 thank you to all of our wonderful employees.  And thank
15 you for being so responsive to our constituents and
16 taxpayers who call you when they're in need or
17 responding when we call.  And I'm greatly appreciative
18 of the little weekly report keeping us all up to date
19 on all the different actions across all the
20 departments.  Those are very helpful.  So thank you all
21 very much.  
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
23 Anyone else? 
24 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, if I
25 may?
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman
27 Jimmy Davis.
28 JIMMY DAVIS:  You know, it’s
29 hard to believe how important it is to have
30 accreditation like this to the general public, but as a
31 sitting Council person, I understand this and having
32 worked with APWA and other organizations, I know how
33 tough it is to, day in and day out, to keep this going. 
34 And I appreciate all the efforts from everybody that
35 that makes this accreditation happen.  Because this is
36 something that's truly special.  Not everybody can do
37 this.  And this is a great achievement.  And I
38 appreciate every one of you.  
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you very
40 much.  Anybody else?
41 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman?
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman
43 Wright.
44 JOHN WRIGHT:  I just want to
45 say we do, we have a great public works team and just
46 appreciate what everybody does there.  And hopefully, I
47 hope we as a Council continue to support you and let
48 you do what you do best.  And Matt, I can't tell you
49 how much I appreciate you.  We spent a number of days
50 out in the rain, looking at different roads and water



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
13

1 runoff and things like that.  You've always delivered
2 and been very responsive, along with the rest of your
3 team.  So I really appreciate what y'all do.  Thank
4 you.  
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay, anyone
6 else?  Councilman Elgin.
7 GREG ELGIN:  Again, I just
8 want to say thank you to everyone out here.  I know we
9 speak to several people a lot, and I haven’t been on
10 very long.  I don't get to see a lot of the rest of
11 you.  But I just want to again say thank you to the
12 whole team.  We know what y’all do and we do appreciate
13 it.  And like Chairman Dunn said, y'all do a great job
14 for us.  So thank you again.  
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
16 Anyone else?  Again hats off and thank each and
17 everyone y'all for all what y’all do for the citizens
18 Anderson County.  And any way we can support you,
19 please let us know.  
20 I just want to say like I said, it's been a trying
21 year I know for what are y'all have been through and
22 all.  I think it was a holiday, I think it was
23 Christmas Eve, I called Matt Hogan and he answered the
24 phone like that and got it took care of in a short
25 amount of time.  And I really want to thank y’all for
26 what all y'all do, again.  Appreciate y'all.  
27 We're going to move on now, item number six is
28 going to be EMS update.  Start off with -- and we're
29 going to let -- I'm going to let Brett Sanders -- we
30 asked -- I asked for this update last Council meeting,
31 and then went to the Public Safety Committee. 
32 Chairman, Glenn Davis is unable to be here.  Brett --
33 Councilman Sanders is going to handle that.  Councilman
34 Sanders.  
35 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
36 Chairman.  As you said, Chairman, ---
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Hold on a
38 minute and let them get out of here.  Anybody that
39 wants to leave, y’all go ahead and go on and we'll
40 start his meeting.  Get this other part going.  Y’all
41 are welcome to stay and have some more fun.  
42 Councilman Sanders. 
43 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
44 Chairman.  As you said, chairman of the committee, Mr.
45 Glenn Davis is out of town and wasn't able to be here. 
46 Mr. Dunn asked for an update.  And also it was to -- we
47 have some new committee members, and Councilman Elgin
48 on the committee, and it was to help bring us up to
49 speed.  There was a lot of information.  And that's why
50 that I requested that they come in and do the same



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
14

1 presentation that was presented at our meeting.  
2 Mr. Elgin, you may have something you want to add. 
3 I know he had some great questions in there.  But I
4 think the presentation will not only surprise everyone,
5 but show them that the system we have in place is
6 working and is a lot better than what we had.  We have
7 more ambulances, more QRVs.  It's still a work in
8 progress and things to be done.  But I want to thank
9 everyone that works there for what you guys do and what
10 you're actually going through in such a short period of
11 time.  
12 But Mr. Elgin, do you have anything you'd like to
13 add? 
14 GREG ELGIN:  No, sir.  
15 BRETT SANDERS:  I think Mr. Don
16 McCown, Mr. Steve Kelly, would you like to ...
17 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
19 Make sure that mic’s on, Rusty.  
20 STEVE KELLY:  It’s on now.  
21 Thank you for the chance to be here and your
22 continued support.  This is the slide show that we did
23 for the public safety meeting about two weeks ago.  I
24 think -- did y'all get copies of it?  So I'm just going
25 to go through it real quick and hit some of the
26 highlights.  September of last year we celebrated our
27 one year of service here.  At that time the county was
28 operating 13 24-hour stations, QRV stations, with two
29 of those -- two extra 12-hour stations.  We’re fully
30 staffed with our paramedics full time.  That's very
31 unusual for paramedic staffing in the EMS field.  
32 Vehicle status.  We started out with a lot of
33 different vehicles from different divisions we got from
34 Stone, but we worked out a rotation replacement with
35 them now.  Seems to be going pretty good.  We're
36 starting to build our inventory of county owned
37 equipment.  And when I say this, things such as the
38 cardiac life packs, Lucas machines, stuff of that
39 nature.  
40 The county -- right now the county paramedics are
41 the primary staffing at all events within the county. 
42 One of our goals for the last year was to increase the
43 number of outreach programs that we provided the
44 emergency medical responders, which we call the EMRs,
45 the basic CPR and first aid and stop the bleed classes. 
46 The first responder kits and AEDs we've issued to law
47 enforcement that have taken any related training with
48 us.  All fire departments within Anderson County should
49 be equipped with an AED now that was purchased by
50 Anderson County.  Fire departments participating with



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
15

1 first response with EMS have been provided the needed
2 medical equipment.  
3 Just in case you're not familiar with it, the quick
4 response vehicles we're referring to, they're staffed
5 24 hours a day with one county paramedic.  We try to
6 place them strategically throughout the county. 
7 They're numbered by their fire districts, such as ALS
8 11 stays in center op, which is station 11's district. 
9 The QRV placement, along with the ambulances, are
10 designed to have an emergency responder on scene within
11 nine minutes and 59 seconds 90 percent of the time. 
12 That is currently the rough placement of all our QRV's
13 within Anderson County.  Then when you add in the
14 ambulances that is -- that's roughly the placement of
15 them, also.  During the day as the peak hours start
16 coming around, you start getting more areas having a
17 little bit better coverage.  
18 Our EMS data, we measure what we call emergent
19 response Priority Ones for that 90 percentile reach in
20 the nine minutes and 59 seconds.  Our EMS Priority One
21 data is compiled and reviewed monthly by a third party. 
22 I can talk.  So we're not involved with if we're in
23 compliance or not.  Someone else is looking at that
24 data and telling us we are.  We've been roughly staying
25 about 91 to 92 percent.  
26 Currently, we're about 11,000 EMS requests above
27 what we've ever had before.  That's roughly the
28 breakdown that we have printed out right now.  We're
29 still waiting on the data from November, December and
30 then January of this year.  But because the number of
31 ambulances on the roads were increased, I expect those
32 numbers to probably stay around at 91, 92 percent.  
33 We have now staffed the Quality Improvement
34 Coordinator position.  That position reviews all
35 patient care reports to ensure that we're -- our
36 parameters are giving the highest level of care
37 available.  It evaluates all our current training
38 programs, and develops or implements new programs as
39 they deem fit.  
40 The 911 dispatch.  When you call 911, they ask you
41 a series of questions to determine what level of
42 emergency you're having.  We're currently using what we
43 refer to as the APCO standard.  We're getting ready to
44 change over to what is called medical priority
45 dispatch.  It is considered the gold standards for all
46 911 centers.  It allows for a lot better call triage
47 and a lot better utilization of the resources that are
48 out there.  We expect that to probably go live by July. 
49 And it'll make a big difference for us.  
50 The way it is designed also, it's going to affect



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
16

1 all emergency responders, specifically fire departments
2 in the areas.  So we will be sitting down with them as
3 we start getting further into this to determine what
4 type of stuff they want to respond to with this.  
5 Where are we planning on going in next year?  We're
6 going to continue our partnership with AnMed Health. 
7 We're going to continue monthly to monitor EMS response
8 times to make sure that the resources are in the
9 current places.  We're going to try to grow area -- try
10 to grow relationships with some of our other area
11 industries that we've not had a lot of contact with
12 over this first year.  
13 We've had a great response working with Anderson
14 County Sheriff's Department and the fire departments. 
15 Over the next year we want to try to expand it to all
16 the municipalities to create a little bit better
17 working environment with them.  
18 We are currently working on a community paramedic
19 program with the hospital.  Those paramedics do not
20 respond on regular 911 calls.  They go out and follow
21 up with patients that the hospital deems are high risk
22 for readmission and stuff like that.  
23 Over the next year, next budget year, we want to
24 start looking at some way to make an incentive pay for
25 our paramedics.  And when I say that, if we start
26 getting paramedics that are 5, 10, 15 years in this
27 field, have multiple certifications that entitles them
28 to a little bit higher pay than what a normal straight
29 out of school medic would be.  
30 We are looking at some body cameras similar to what
31 the sheriff's department uses.  Ninety-five percent of
32 the complaints that we get are sort of he say, she say
33 kind of stuff.  And if we had the ability to go back
34 and look at footage of stuff like that, we could fix
35 those.  So we are looking into grants for body cameras
36 for our county paramedics.  
37 We are going to continue to try to engage our
38 paramedics with a little deeper and better training
39 opportunities.  And as they come to us looking for
40 specialty certifications, we're going to try to support
41 that.  We are so confident that this system has
42 performed well, we have turned in for South Carolina
43 Large EMS System of the Year.  Should be an award
44 that's given out at the end of next month.  So
45 hopefully by then we’ll know.  
46 And that's the end.  
47 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Kelly or
48 Mr. McCown, would you share with us to put a little
49 more in perspective.  You say we're at 91 percent. 
50 Where we were prior to implementing this new system



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
17

1 percentage wise?
2 STEVE KELLY:  All the data
3 that we had compiled for the last three years of the
4 previous system, we stayed in the 50, 55, 60 percentile
5 measure on that 959 90 percent of the time.  
6 BRETT SANDERS:  And also, I
7 think during the meeting, I don't remember if it was
8 Mr. McCown or yourself, we have more ambulances and
9 provide a larger service than Greenville County.  And
10 what did you say Greenville County’s budget was?  I
11 think someone told me ---
12 STEVE KELLY:   Don’t hold me
13 to it.  But I think Greenville County's EMS budget is
14 around 26 million a year.  
15 BRETT SANDERS:  And we have
16 more ambulances and providing a better service than
17 what they're doing. 
18 STEVE KELLY:   Yes, since I
19 have started this -- or since we've started the new EMS
20 system, there's not been a day that we've been less
21 than 15 ambulances, and that’s even through the heat of
22 the COVID.  And there's no other county that I know of
23 that can say that.  We've done very, very good on
24 staff.  And normally, staffing-wise, now, night time,
25 may drop by to 14, 15 ambulances depending on the day
26 of the week.  And then max, we've been going 21 or 22
27 during the day.  And then we supplement that with the
28 14 QRVs.
29 BRETT SANDERS:  Well, I
30 appreciate all the work you do.  Thank you.  
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone have any
32 comments or questions? 
33 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yeah, I just
34 want to say, Mr. McCown, Mr. Kelly, you know, August of
35 2021, I’d been on council about six or seven months,
36 and we had some very contentious meetings leading up to
37 this decision.  And I took a little bit of a risk, as
38 did the other three, to support this system.  And I
39 just want to say I couldn't be more proud of the job
40 that you guys are doing over there.  And I just really
41 appreciate what y'all are doing.  And let's keep it up
42 and keep trying to improve upon it.  And I know it’s
43 not perfect and it never will be.  But it sure is
44 better than was before.  And I thank you all for what
45 you're doing.  
46 STEVE KELLY:  Thank you.  Again, if you
47 ever have any questions or comments, please reach out
48 to us and let us know.  Thank you.  
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else? 
50 Okay.  Councilman Elgin.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
18

1 GREG ELGIN:  Mr. Kelly, just
2 one question that I asked in the meeting just for
3 everybody else up here that didn't get to make it.  As
4 far as the times go, you said we were stopping the
5 clock when the first unit got on scene.  That includes
6 QRV ---
7 STEVE KELLY:   The first
8 arriving EMS unit, whether it be an ambulance or a QRV
9 stops the clock.  
10 GREG ELGIN:  Okay.  And the
11 question -- the follow-up question I have on that is we
12 all want to be within that timeframe.  But specifically
13 -- and I know this is a county presentation -- but
14 specifically on that side it’s written in the contract
15 as far as MedShore’s last priority that they have to
16 make that 959 or there are penalties accrued to that. 
17 So if we're stopping -- if our ALS units are stopping
18 the clock, then how are we calculating how long it
19 takes them to get there, on a Priority One call?
20 TOMMY DUNN:   If you would,
21 Mr. McCown, do you want to speak to that?
22 DON MCCOWN:  And that’s not
23 exactly correct.  If the first unit stops, the clock
24 stops the 959, whether it be the QRV or ambulance.  If
25 the ambulance is coming in second, they have up to 1259
26 to get there.  Okay, that's how the system is set up. 
27 The way the system is developed is that most important
28 thing there is patient care.  To transport is
29 secondary.  That's why we've had to change the culture
30 through our 911 center to show some people that you
31 know what, you don't need an ambulance because your leg
32 hurts.  They'd be here with the lights and siren.  We
33 need -- not saying you don't need to go to hospital. 
34 We're just saying you don't need to lights and siren. 
35 So yeah, some of those people are going to wait longer. 
36 But we do hold them to 1259 if it’s a QRV call.  Same
37 way if the ambulance gets on scene first, they stop the
38 clock.  
39 So the one thing I think a lot of Council members
40 may get the occasional complained of, well, we had to
41 wait on the ambulance.  Well, there may be a reason
42 because me, for example, if I first respond and stop
43 the clock because I have full AOS gear and I'm part of
44 the system, I may tell the ambulance to reduce down to
45 non-lights and siren.  So they can come on non-
46 emergency.  I don't need them to keep coming like
47 they’re coming.  
48 So that's the whole purpose of the system.  Our
49 county has broke down a wall that is going wild across
50 the United States right now.  Mr. Kelly hit one of the



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
19

1 key times by I think if nothing else we need to be
2 prouder of, he said we are fully staffed.  There is no
3 system across the state right now that can say that,
4 but Anderson County can.  Southeastern United States,
5 same way.  There's not a system across the United
6 States right now that’s saying that they're not fully
7 staffed.  We are.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. McCown, me
9 and you had a conversation here a few weeks ago, and
10 correct me if I’m wrong, you were telling me I think
11 you was out in San Diego, I believe it was, on a thing. 
12 What did you tell me the response time was out there?
13 DON MCCOWN:  The response
14 time out there is right now at 21 minutes for -- and
15 that's with over 300 respond.  They still can't get
16 responders out.  We are doing phenomenal.  I could
17 stand up here and just toot the horn all day how good a
18 job.  Yes, we've had some struggles.  Yes, we've had to
19 change.  But we changed the whole culture here.  And
20 when we said we're going to change the way we do our
21 EMS system, and you guys it’s working.  It's working. 
22 Yes, you're going to have the occasional person who
23 calls and says I had to wait 15 minutes for an
24 ambulance.  But then if you ask them what was wrong
25 with you?  And I said, well, you know, I've been having
26 back pain for two days.  May have to wait for an
27 ambulance for 15 minutes.  Because I think another key
28 fact that Mr. Kelly brought up, too, that I don't know
29 if anybody picked up on.  We are at 11,000 calls
30 greater than we've ever been.  So our call volume has
31 gone through the roof.  And we've still been able to
32 meet our response time compliance and we’ve still been
33 able to meet coverage in our county.  I don't think
34 anybody else will ever come close to doing that here.  
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Steve, Mr.
36 Kelly, you want to introduce -- you’ve got some of your
37 team here.  Some of y’all’s team here? 
38 STEVE KELLY:   Cory Freeman,
39 Operations Manager.  And then directly behind him would
40 be Teryi Louch.  Alex Kay.  
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Everybody stand
42 up here with EMS.  Thank y’all.
43 APPLAUSE  
44 GREG ELGIN:    Mr. Kelly,
45 again, I do appreciate y'all and appreciate what you’re
46 doing and what you do and all our county employees
47 there.  I interact with them a lot.  So again, just
48 appreciate what y'all do.  And thank you.  
49 TOMMY DUNN:   I just want to
50 say, too, thank y’all, I appreciate what you do.  What



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
20

1 we got ain't perfect.  I know we’re striving every day
2 to try to improve and get better.  What we had before
3 wasn’t first by no means.  I worked with that system a
4 long time myself.  But thank y’all very, very much.  
5 Appreciate y’all. 
6 CINDY WILSON:  May I?
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
8 CINDY WILSON:  Trying to
9 coordinate a new EMS system and new equipment and new
10 dispatch procedures had to be a daunting task.  And I
11 greatly appreciate all that has been accomplished with
12 that.  And it must be said that the rare complaint from
13 constituents in my area, I've called and set up
14 meetings and it's been addressed immediately. 
15 Improvements.  It's always a work in progress when
16 you've got so many working parts like DHEC and medical
17 considerations.  So y'all are greatly appreciated. 
18 Thank you.  
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Again, thank
20 y’all.  
21 JIMMY DAVIS:  Can we can we
22 get a copy of this report emailed to us? 
23 STEVE KELLY:   Yeah.
24 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Next on the
26 agenda, will be item number 7, citizen concerns
27 regarding Long Road development.  Come on up, who’s
28 going to present that to us.  
29 DAVID WALKER:   I'm David
30 Walker and I live at 585 Long Road.  And this is Brent
31 Elrod.  He's going to speak later because he's an
32 engineer.  
33 And I represent all of the property owners, every
34 single one of them on Long Road, except one.  I thing
35 that's obvious.  And the reason I'm here is there's a
36 proposal -- there's a piece of property on Long Road,
37 if you'll pull the second sheet out of your folder,
38 it’s a county map and Long Road runs from 81 to Midway,
39 as y'all know.  The green represents right now R-A,
40 residential agriculture.  And there are horse farms,
41 cattle farms, tree farms and hay farms on this property
42 on Long Road.  The yellow with the X on it represents
43 where there's a proposed warehouse that's over 13 acres
44 under roof.  You know how many vehicles -- 100 plus
45 vehicles a day coming in and out of there 24/7.  Most
46 of them running all the time.  And 560,000 square feet. 
47 Now that property is zoned I-2.  We don't know how
48 it got that way.  Whether it was accidental or
49 intentional many years ago, but there's some question
50 about it that -- because there's no way that it should



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
21

1 be I-2.  It is.  We can't argue about that.  
2 But the proposed warehouse there is ridiculous. 
3 And I've got a sheet that I'm just going to read
4 through real fast.  Pollution.  Again, farm animals. 
5 There's a horse farm right across the street.  There's
6 a cattle farm right next to it.  And there's another
7 cattle farm just diagonal to it.  The pollution.  Sound
8 pollution, 100 trucks in 24/7.  Light pollution.  The
9 parking lot is huge.  We've seen the plans.  It's
10 unbelievable.  I'm sure it'll be well lit.  Air exhaust
11 from the vehicles and trucks everyday.  Land and water. 
12 Over time those trucks are going to leak gas and oil
13 and stormwater runoff is going to be a big problem, we
14 believe, and Brent will speak to that in a minute. 
15 Again, I mentioned the zoning, we think was an error
16 and some mistakes in life we don't get a chance to fix. 
17 We’ve got time to fix this one.  Aesthetics.  There's
18 absolutely no way that this building and operation is
19 fit -- fits on Long Road in the past, now or anytime in
20 the future.  It will be offensive in every way.  And I
21 really -- if you get a chance to go stand across from
22 where this property is, if you stand in the road, I did
23 it today and you look -- there's no way that anybody
24 could possibly conceive that they were going to put a
25 13 square -- a 13 acre under roof warehouse with a
26 number of trucks coming in and out on Long -- and it
27 empties onto Long Road.  It doesn't even go on to 81. 
28 And we’ve got an ordinance against trucks over six
29 wheels.  So we'll address that down the road.  
30 I would just beg you to please go look at it for
31 yourself.  Standing there you will not believe that
32 that is -- that somebody even would consider putting
33 that there.  It may be right, but just because
34 something -- may be legal, I'm sorry, but that doesn't
35 make it right.  And this is time to do the right thing
36 for Anderson County.  There are places for large
37 industrial operations such as this.  Long Road is not
38 the place.  Again it is almost 100 percent R-A.  Stop
39 the project now.  We can't fix this mistake if it goes
40 forward.  Our children, grandchildren and their
41 children will suffer from pollution of this -- from the
42 pollution of this intrusion.  What really is one of the
43 few remaining farming communities in that part of the
44 county.  
45 Life is short.  We have a few times when we can
46 choose to do the right thing.  I don't want us to
47 acquiesce to the short-lived intoxication of the
48 almighty dollar because those that do things just for
49 money, it's -- only a few people benefit and that
50 benefit really doesn't last very long.  There are other



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
22

1 places in the county where this would be appropriate
2 and founded.  Brett is good -- you know, he would like
3 -- we would like to send it over there to his district. 
4 He's got a nice one over there now off of 81, the FedEx
5 place.  This one right is twice that size.  On Long
6 Road.  I can't even put it on paper.  I took some
7 pictures for y'all today.  But I've just -- you know,
8 I’m just kind of dumbfounded.  
9 Anyway, it is what it is.  Thank y’all for your
10 time.  Brent is going to speak to stormwater.  
11 BRENT ELROD:  I’m Brent Elrod
12 and I'm a retired registered civil engineer.  Worked
13 for Duke Energy for 40 years.  I did the majority of
14 the stormwater and wastewater permitting for Oconee
15 Nuclear Station.  
16 Like David said, this warehouse is -- or proposed
17 warehouse is 560,000 square feet, which is twice the
18 size of the FedEx warehouse and the Scotts Bridge
19 warehouse, both of which are somewhere around 250,000. 
20 And I think you said 13 acres.  It’s closer to 35 acres
21 under -- well under roof but then when you consider the
22 pavement.  All right, so still we’re pushing 35 acres.
23 Every bit of that water is coming to the watershed that
24 comes right by my house.  I own 17 acres near the
25 corner of Wilson Road and Hopewell Church Road.  So
26 Beaverdam Creek borders my property, the Beaverdam
27 Creek sewer line comes right through my property.  And
28 I'm already in the flood plain and I'm okay with it
29 because it is what it is.  But all this additional
30 runoff from this FedEx -- from this proposed warehouse
31 is going to be a big deal to me.  We're definitely
32 getting all that water -- right now the water from the
33 FedEx warehouse, half of it goes to the north, and the
34 other half comes right down to us.  So there is a
35 national wetland.  You can look at -- everybody can
36 look at the US National wetlands mapper on the internet
37 and you'll find there's a small wetland right next to
38 this property and all this property -- the runoff on
39 this is going to run through that wetland.  And you
40 know, I think that's another issue that needs to be
41 addressed.  
42 Right now the runoff is coming to a small creek
43 that’s somewhere around six, eight feet wide, maybe six
44 inches deep, but when it rains, this thing goes to like
45 25 foot wide and six to eight feet deep.  And it's all
46 coming to Beaverdam Creek.  I've got a -- I know y’all
47 can't see this.  But I’m going to show it anyway.  It's
48 about five seconds long.  This is the last big hard
49 rain we had.  If I can get this to work.  Doesn’t want
50 to work.  Anyway, I can't get it to work.  But anyway,



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
23

1 all this water is already significantly going to affect
2 us and everybody downstream.  And there's no way we can
3 design for this additional flood water.  
4 The other issue -- I think this is an issue that
5 needs to be addressed.  The Anderson County stormwater
6 manual requires you to design for the two and 10 year
7 storm.  The Greenville County stormwater manual
8 requires you to design for the 2, 10 year and 25 year
9 storm, and with provisions to require the 100 year
10 storm in areas -- in watersheds that are already
11 overloaded.  That needs to be addressed, at least in
12 the Anderson County stormwater manual.  
13 And that's pretty much all I’ve got.
14 DAVID WALKER:  Yeah, we don’t
15 know what y’all can do or how y’all can help to stop
16 it.  We really don’t.  But we just thought we’d start
17 here.  In the very least, if you say, well, it's an
18 opportunity and you go ahead and do it, there's no way
19 it can be 560,000 square feet.  No way.  So our request
20 is if you can’t stop it, you know, maybe bring it to
21 5,000 square feet.  That’s all we have.  Thank y’all
22 for listening to us.
23 BRENT ELROD:  I got this
24 video to work.  For those of you who can see it, I’m
25 standing in the middle of Wilson Road, and this was a
26 pretty good storm.  I’m standing in the middle of
27 Wilson Road.  You see how deep the water is?  It was
28 this deep on Wilson Road.  This is bottom land. 
29 Beaverdam Creek Sewer line is right there.  And yeah,
30 so ...
31 DAVID WALKER:  We would thank
32 you, and at least maybe give us some advice on where to
33 go next.  The design of the building, we have no
34 comment on (inaudible).  This building is going to
35 generate too much water.  And it’s just not the right
36 thing to do.  Thank y’all very much for your time.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all.
38 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman,
39 may I?
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am.
41 CINDY WILSON:  Unfortunately
42 this is in district.  The omitted fact here is it’s 45
43 feet tall and on a higher elevation.  It will literally
44 dwarf everything around it.  So we are very concerned. 
45 Thank you.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
47 Move on now to item number 8(a), Ordinance third
48 reading, 2023-001, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance
49 #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as
50 adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
24

1 Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .49 acres from C-2
2 (Highway Commercial District) to R-20 (Single-Family
3 Residential District) on a parcel of land, identified
4 as 2647 Anderson Hwy, Williamston in the Williamston
5 Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book 14259 page 187.  The
6 parcel is further identified as TMS #197-00-05-018.  
7 Do we have a motion?
8 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion to move
10 this forward.  Do we have a second?
11 GREG ELGIN:  Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by
13 Councilman Elgin.  Any discussion?
14 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman?
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
16 JOHN WRIGHT:  Just a
17 confirmation that this was part of the original zoning
18 that looks like it was done in 1999; is that right?
19 CINDY WILSON:  Pardon?
20 JOHN WRIGHT:  This is part of
21 the original zoning map that was done in 1999; correct?
22 CINDY WILSON:  This precinct
23 was zoned, I think, in 2000-2001.
24 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.
25 CINDY WILSON:  But based on
26 the comp plan that was developed in ‘99.
27 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.
28 CINDY WILSON:  And in this
29 particular instance, the family owns the commercial
30 property and the residential property, and they sought
31 to expand the lot that they had that was residential to
32 build a building next to the building they own that was
33 commercial.
34 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.  Thank
35 you.
36 CINDY WILSON:  And they
37 understood that people covet commercial zoning, but
38 they felt -- so there was absolutely no contest among
39 the neighbors.  They were all in favor.  Thank you.
40 JOHN WRIGHT:  Great.  Thank
41 you.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Anymore
43 discussion?  Mr. Sanders.
44 BRETT SANDERS:  (Inaudible)
45 said that the people worked hard to get the zoning in
46 there and the zoning was not to be changed.  So now
47 we’re wanting to change zoning; is that what you’re
48 telling me?
49 CINDY WILSON:  This family
50 owns all the property, including the part that they’re



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
25

1 rezoning.  And it’s less than half an acre.  They said
2 they needed to have a little more space to build a
3 building or add to a building.
4 BRETT SANDERS:  So we can
5 change zoning?
6 CINDY WILSON:  It’s a less
7 intensive use.
8 BRETT SANDERS:  Okay.  Thank
9 you.
10 CINDY WILSON:  I don’t think
11 you normally find much dissent when it’s a less
12 intensive use.  That’s been my observation over the
13 last twenty years.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Anymore
15 discussion?
16 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman,
17 if I could?
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Go ahead.
19 JOHN WRIGHT:  So less
20 intensive use, highway to single-family residential is
21 ---
22 CINDY WILSON:  Pardon?
23 JOHN WRIGHT:  Less intensive
24 use being highway commercial to a type of residential;
25 correct, when you say less intensive?
26 CINDY WILSON:  And they own
27 that property.
28 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.  That’s
29 good.  I’m good.  Thank you.
30 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else? 
32 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
33 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
34 Moving on to Ordinance 9(a), Ordinance second
35 reading, 2023-003, an Ordinance authorizing the
36 transfer of certain real properties located within
37 Anderson County, South Carolina which was a part of the
38 neighborhood initiative program to the Nehemiah
39 Community Revitalization Corporation; and other matters
40 related thereto.  
41 Mr. Burns, would you go over this again?  This is
42 second reading, if you’ll just state ---
43 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
44 these are properties that we obtained when we did the
45 neighborhood improvement program where we demolished
46 houses all across the county.  And now we have these
47 properties and we want to turn them to the Nehemiah
48 Corporation to put them to productive use back on the
49 tax rolls and provide affordable housing for Anderson
50 County residents.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
26

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  This
2 will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to
3 this matter, please step forward and state your name
4 and district and address the Chair.  We’re in a public
5 hearing.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing none, the
6 public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to
7 move this?
8 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
10 Wilson.  Have a second?
11 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Jimmy
13 Davis, Councilman Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?
14 CINDY WILSON:  May I very
15 quickly?
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
17 CINDY WILSON:  The nice thing
18 about this particular ordinance is it’s putting
19 property that we’ve had a grant to clean up, remove the
20 delapidated stuff, as Mr. Burns pointed out, so it’s
21 now going back into the tax base.  It’s been county-
22 owned or in the Pelzer Heritage Commission, a
23 501(c)(3), for several years.  So this should be a very
24 supportable ordinance.  
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?  
26 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
27 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
28 unanimously.
29 Moving on to item number 9(b), 2023-004, an
30 Ordinance to sell a parcel of real property to Anderson
31 School District 3; and other matters related thereto. 
32 Mr. Burns.
33 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
34 this is part of the program to move the library to Main
35 Street in Iva.  The building will be sold to School
36 District 3, which will be incorporated into their
37 operations.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   This will be a
39 public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this
40 matter, please step forward and address the chair.  You
41 have three minutes.  State your name and district for
42 the record.  Public hearing.  Seeing and hearing none,
43 the public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion
44 to move this forward?
45 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
46 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion
48 Councilman Sanders; second by Ms. Wilson.  Any
49 discussion?  
50 GREG ELGIN:  Mr. Chairman,



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
27

1 I’d just like to say ---
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman
3 Elgin.
4 GREG ELGIN:  I’d just like
5 to say that this is a good project.  I know it was
6 worked on before I got here, but the town of Iva, as
7 well as the school district, are all for this, and
8 appreciate your support for it.  Thank you.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else? 
10 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
11 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
12 There are no 10, number 10.  First readings, there
13 are none.  Resolutions, there are none.
14 Moving on to 12, approval of a sub-recipient
15 agreement between Anderson County and AIM and Rebuild
16 Upstate.  Mr. Burns.
17 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
18 these are federal funds that are given to us through
19 the Home Program.  We are going to partner with
20 Anderson Interfaith Ministries and Rebuild Upstate to
21 provide housing rehabilitation to qualified home owned
22 residences, and we will report back with an update on
23 Council how this progresses.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Do
25 we have a motion?
26 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
28 Wilson; second by Councilman Wright.  Any discussion?
29 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman?
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
31 JOHN WRIGHT:  It’s a great
32 project.  I was just curious, how are the homes
33 determined?  Like do they submit an application or does
34 AIM ---
35 RUSTY BURNS:  They submit an
36 application to one of these two organizations.  
37 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.
38 RUSTY BURNS:  They have to
39 meet certain federal requirements based on income
40 level.  They have to be owner-occupied.  And then they
41 can go in and do a work-up to see what is below
42 standard.  Then they can go in and fix it.  Both of
43 these organizations currently do this.  This will just
44 add additional money to them.  It will not replace
45 money that they have.  It will be additional money.
46 JOHN WRIGHT:  That’s great. 
47 Thank you.
48 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else? 
50 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
28

1 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
2 We’re going to move on to item number 13, approval
3 of contract for Pendleton/Clemson/Anderson Regional
4 WWTP.  Mr. Burns.
5 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
6 the Clemson City Council has already approved this. 
7 Pendleton Town Council has approve this.  This is part
8 of our mega project to expand the Clemson/Pendleton/
9 Anderson County Wastewater Treatment Plant.  This is
10 going to hire the Harper Corporation and they are going
11 to be the construction managers in charge of the entire
12 project.
13 Also, I will remind Council that we received over a
14 $5,000,000.00 earmark appropriation from the federal
15 government towards this project.  And we are awaiting
16 word of other grant funds to go towards this project.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
18 Burns.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
19 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
20 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
22 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
23 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
24 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
25 Moving on to item number 14, approval of the 2023
26 County Council meeting schedule.  Y’all have had a copy
27 of this.  Anybody want to make a motion to move this
28 forward?
29 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
30 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Jimmy
32 Davis and second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
33 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
34 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
35 We’re going to move on now to item number 15,
36 report from Public Safety Committee meeting held on
37 January 24, 2023.  Vice Chairman, Chairman Sanders.
38 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.  That
39 was the one that we just ---
40 TOMMY DUNN:   That was about
41 all y’all done?  That was it?
42 BRETT SANDERS:  That was pretty
43 much it.  And I requested they come and do the
44 presentation.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   And we
46 appreciate that.  I just wanted to double-check and
47 make sure you didn’t have nothing else.  Thank you.
48 BRETT SANDERS:  Mr. Elgin might
49 have something he wants to add to it.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   You got



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
29

1 anything?
2 GREG ELGIN:  (Inaudible.)
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank, y’all.
4 Moving on to item number 16, report from the
5 Planning and Public Works Committee meeting held on
6 February 2, 2023.  Chairlady Ms. Wilson.
7 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
8 Chairman.  Our Planning and Public Works Committee
9 meeting was well attended, including several private
10 citizens, a utility provider, one Planning Commission
11 member, several out-of-town developers and their
12 connections, and county staff representing departments
13 related to agenda items to be discussed.  
14 Our first item was the subdivision development
15 approval process, water and sewer letter requirement. 
16 Members of our Planning Commission have requested that
17 they be provided information for development proposals
18 coming before them that would indicate utility
19 availability.  This effort should not cause an extra
20 expense for developers prior to their preliminary plat. 
21 Dyke Spender of Powdersville Water stated that
22 Powdersville Water would charge.  
23 As Chairman of this committee, I suggested that a
24 simple letter stating the infrastructure proximity to
25 the proposed project with estimated existing capacity
26 available at that point in time should suffice.
27 For example, if a project is a heavy water user and
28 a water line is nowhere near the proposed project, then
29 the Planning Commission should know that.  
30 Any person can make an appointment to go to the --
31 like to the water companies and sewer department and
32 look and learn whether utilities infrastructure is
33 currently located and what their future plans are.  And
34 they should be -- that should be a simple remedy.  
35 Anyway, no action was taken at this meeting.
36 Item 2 was the discussion of a tree ordinance. 
37 Many of our County Council members have been inundated
38 with citizen complaints from around the county where
39 high density residential or large industrial projects
40 involving massive amounts of dirt being moved and all
41 the trees taken down have been observed.  Without fail,
42 these same sites, in changing the topography and
43 drastically -- so drastically have created serious
44 stormwater runoff issues.  I’ll pass some photos around
45 to y’all that Mr. Wilson took of one of the sites
46 recently annexed in by the city of Anderson so you’ll
47 get an idea of the magnitude of the water runoff
48 issues, anyway, if you haven’t been subjected to these
49 sites.  There are obviously many violations of our
50 federal Clean Water Act, our South Carolina DHEC



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
30

1 regulations and our own stormwater provisions.
2 In our last review of an ordinance dealing with
3 this and the unnecessary destruction of trees, we noted
4 several areas in that proposed ordinance needing better
5 definition and clarification.  The changes were not
6 completed in time for this meeting.  It was also noted
7 in our discussion of a need for this county to hire a
8 horticulturist to oversee implementation of this
9 ordinance and other areas related to that in our
10 county.
11 With Clemson University graduating many students in
12 this field of study every semester, we should
13 anticipate excellent candidates commanding a reasonable
14 starting salary.  This aspect of the tree ordinance
15 will be taken up in our budget discussions for ‘23-24
16 and we’ll have a written draft at our next meeting for
17 the tree ordinance.
18 Item 3 was the discussion of the traffic impact
19 study.  The majority of the complaints our council
20 members receive daily, and I’ll speak for myself, deal
21 with development and road issues.  Our committee
22 reviewed an updated draft with further discussion
23 indicating additional changes needed before a vote. 
24 The gist of this concern is that developers need to pay
25 for the road improvements needed to get their clients
26 in and out efficiently and safely.  This expensive
27 burden is currently being placed on the county’s
28 taxpayers.  Every state and county studied addressed
29 this issue decades ago.  We’re very, very far behind. 
30 Road funds are insufficient, as it is, to cover what we
31 have in the ground already.  Our committee will have
32 another draft consideration at our next meeting.
33 I want to thank all of our county staff and all of
34 those who attended the meeting and this committee,
35 because this is where we’re doing a lot of deep
36 discussion and research and it’s going to take some
37 time to get ourselves organized.  But thank you.  
38 And do my fellow committee members have anything
39 they’d like to add?  Thank you.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all.
41 Moving now to requests from Council members.  
42 Ms. Wilson?
43 CINDY WILSON:  I have none. 
44 Thank you.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman
46 Wright?
47 JOHN WRIGHT:  I’d like to
48 allocate $315.00 to Generation 4 from County Council
49 District 1's rec account.  Put that in the form of a
50 motion.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
31

1 TOMMY DUNN:   That was $300
2 and how much?
3 JOHN WRIGHT:  $315.00, I
4 think.
5 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
7 Wright; and second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All
8 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
9 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
10 Councilman Elgin?
11 GREG ELGIN:  Nothing from
12 District 3.
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
14 Councilman Jimmy Davis.
15 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
16 Chair.  From the District 6 special appropriation
17 account, $500.00 to Generation 4.  I’ll make this -- do
18 it in one motion.  And to Connect Powdersville to help
19 with the second annual Rhythm on the River $5,000.00. 
20 Make that in the form of a motion.
21 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
22 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Any discussion? 
24 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
25 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
26 Out of District 5's special appropriations account
27 ---
28 BRETT SANDERS:  I think we’re
29 going to need $1,285.00 on that one, and Mr. Davis
30 asked me to make a request for him of $500.00 and I was
31 going to do $500.00, so that should only leave $285.00. 
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  I was
33 going to do $500.00 and let y’all do the rest.  Would
34 that be -- you good with that?
35 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Me doing
37 $500.00 or me ---
38 BRETT SANDERS:  No, you do ---
39 TOMMY DUNN:   I’ll let you,
40 Mr. Sanders, go ahead and do ---
41 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.
42 Chairman.  I didn’t mean to interrupt you.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Any time you
44 can save the county some money, you feel free to do
45 that.
46 BRETT SANDERS:  All right.  I’d
47 like to do this in combination for me and Mr. Glenn
48 Davis.  Out of our special rec accounts, we would like
49 to do $500.00 each.  So $500.00 for Mr. Davis; $500.00
50 for me.  That’s for the Generation 4.  And I put that



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
32

1 in the form of a motion.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a second?
3 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson. 
5 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
6 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
7 unanimously.
8 BRETT SANDERS:  I think that
9 leaves $285.00.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Out of District
11 5's special appropriations account, I make the motion
12 to do $285.00, or if Mr. Sanders can’t do his math
13 right, need a bit more, whatever it takes to make up
14 the difference.
15 BRETT SANDERS:  It’s right,
16 sir.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   I know it is.
18 I need a second on that.
19 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Jimmy
21 Davis, Councilman Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  All in
22 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
23 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
24 Administrator’s report.
25 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this
26 time, Mr. Chairman.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
28 Attorney Thayer, citizens comments.  As Mr. Thayer
29 calls your name, please step forward, you have three
30 minutes.  Please address the chair and state your name
31 and district for the record.  Mr. Thayer.
32 JORDAN THAYER:  Mr. Chairman,
33 the first person is Debra Williams.
34 DEBRA WILLIAMS:  Good evening. 
35 My name is Debra Williams.  I’m a neighbor of the
36 surrounding area of Big Water Road.  I’ve been asked to
37 speak on behalf of the community of neighbors regarding
38 the proposed 27 campsite development with the intended
39 location at the intersection of Highway 29 South and
40 Big Water Road.
41 Yes, this is located in District 3, and Greg Elgin
42 knows all about the community’s thoughts.  Eighty
43 postcard mailings were sent out to property owners
44 within 2,000 feet from the proposed development
45 notifying them of the upcoming public land use change
46 hearing.  The date was set for December 13, 2022 for
47 Development Standards Land Use Review Application for
48 the applicant, Big Water Marina, LLC.  The owners
49 withdrew from the agenda, but yet continued to change
50 the environment as if approved.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
33

1 Various members of the community have written to
2 Rusty Burns, Holt Hopkins, Tim Cartee and the generic
3 Planning Commission in the form of emails.  These top
4 people hold an authority and are responsible for the
5 welfare and safety of its citizens, have ignored us,
6 and the situation, and turned their heads to avoid
7 conflict.  We have heard nothing from any of these
8 people mentioned above.  If top executives did not know
9 before December 13, 2022 of the total destruction of
10 the land, wildlife and the overall environment off Big
11 Water Road, we invited them to come see.  Since
12 December 13, the graders have worked tirelessly day and
13 night laying concrete pipe, building a stormwater
14 quality basin, septic beach filled area and marketing
15 the entrance and exit for the campers.  
16 We, as a community, are outraged that this has been
17 allowed and nothing has been done.  The members of Big
18 Water, LLC have bypassed the Public Planning Commission
19 hearing.  Just when should a developer make application
20 with Development Standards and the Planning Commission? 
21 Surely way before the land is changed.  Isn’t that the
22 whole purpose?  
23 We, as a community, for numerous reasons, as
24 explained in the emails, are reaching out to this
25 committee to hear and act on our concerns. 
26 Mr. Chairman, we need representation.  I’m leaving
27 with the Council the emails that were sent to Anderson
28 County executives and petitions signed by the
29 neighboring residents about the problems and dangers
30 this 27 RV campsite will impose on us.  The overall
31 safety of the visiting public, local citizens, the
32 environmental hazards, lack of available power on the
33 grid, fire protection, traffic issues, containment of
34 the campers, noise control, light pollution, the trash
35 burning, just to mention a few.
36 The floods of coming and going of new people every
37 weekday and weekend, will destroy our way of life, as
38 well as our property values.  This proposed project is
39 not in the best interest of the community and even the
40 A&M Liquor Store, which would benefit in added revenue,
41 is against the development of the 27 campsites due to
42 anticipated problems.  
43 If this gets approval, it was approved before it
44 was started.  And that’ll be another issue.  Thank you
45 for your time.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
47 You can leave it right there and Mr. Burns will get
48 it to us.
49 DEBRA WILLIAMS:  Thank you.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Thayer.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
34

1 JORDAN THAYER:  Mr. Chairman,
2 next is Ruby Dalmer.  I apologize.
3 RUBY DALMER:  No, it’s my
4 handwriting.  
5 MALE:   (Inaudible.)
6 RUBY DALMER:  (Inaudible.)
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Could you get
8 that ---
9 RUBY DALMER:  A number of us
10 have sent emails to members of the Commission and
11 received no communication back.  We want to address
12 three areas of risks:  environmental impact, public
13 safety, public nuisance.  
14 The marina was once a useful and quiet facility
15 serving those enjoying the lake and the nearby
16 residents, as well.  Since taking it over, it has
17 become a noisy and ugly place.  They clear-cut trees
18 within their boundaries, disrupting neighbors with
19 their handling of events held at the marina.  They have
20 never made any effort to enlighten the neighbors with
21 their plans or been willing to risk and to consider our
22 concerns.  
23 The new owners then bought the land on both sides
24 of Big Water Marina off Route 29, about fifty acres of
25 forested land, I believe.  They need cash, so they
26 proceeded to clear-cut all the trees on both sides of
27 the road with no apparent plans for use.  The
28 environmental impact risk is the loss of many trees and
29 the wildlife that no longer can live there.  Standing
30 water in fields left bare.  Also the beauty of the
31 forest land is gone.  
32 It has been two years with no clean-up and no grass
33 or trees planted and the wasteland, as you’ve heard,
34 they have started to prepare for the RV park.  Base
35 plans are for 27 RV camper sites on ten and a half
36 acres of land cleared next to the Big Marina Road. 
37 This land is outside the gates of the marina.  Now we
38 have a chance to at least manage the public safety risk
39 before it’s too late.  RV campers, with the dogs and
40 kids, will be camping in the sites.  They will be going
41 back and forth to the marina, for the lake, the
42 restaurant and the bar.  The same road will have foot
43 traffic, car, boat trailer, RV, golf cart and
44 residential traffic.  The new RV camper park design and
45 management needs to include the safety of the foot and
46 other traffic going in both directions on Big Water
47 Marina Road.  This risk needs to be managed now.  We
48 also need to manage the public nuisance risk.  The new
49 park is in a residential area.  The brothers told us
50 they have no plans for a camp house to be onsite --



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
35

1 camp host to be onsite to manage the site and to make
2 sure there’s no fires, noise, bothering the neighbors.
3 Is this the image Anderson County wants to promote
4 for Lake Hartwell?  Most people vacationing on the lake
5 are wanting to move here and come to enjoy nature. 
6 Note that all the surrounding camp areas, Sadler’s
7 Creek, Crescent Loop, Watts Sadler, have abundant trees
8 throughout and have camp hosts to manage the facility. 
9 They are not eyesores from the road or the lake.  That
10 is what visitors and locals deserve for Lake Hartwell. 
11 Allowing this travesty to continue as planned hurts the
12 lake visitors, the locals and the image of Anderson
13 County and Lake Hartwell.
14 Thank you very much for listening to me.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am. 
16 Thank y’all.
17 MALE:  And as the
18 woman said previous, we would like to have a hearing, a
19 land use hearing that we were not allowed to have. 
20 They took it off the docket or something like that from
21 the Planning Board.  And I think it’s really necessary
22 to have one.  They’re in full swing right now. 
23 Construction is almost a done deal.  Thank you.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
25 Mr. Thayer.
26 JORDAN THAYER:  Next is Bobby
27 Simmons.
28 BOBBY SIMMONS:  My name is
29 Bobby Simmons.  I’m in District 2.  The first thing I
30 want to do, I want to thank the Council for the
31 lighting.  I don’t know whether I said anything about
32 it before tonight, but before I go to bed tonight, I
33 want to know that I thanked y’all for the lighting
34 because I can see a lot better.  I can see my agenda.
35 And the other area I want to speak on is a lot of
36 people know that I go to the County Council and the
37 City Council meetings and they ask me various
38 questions.  There are questions that I really don’t
39 know the answers to, but I said I would come to the
40 County Council and the City Council and find out these
41 things.
42 The first one is that people want to be involved in
43 Anderson County, so they want to know when these events
44 occur.  They want to know where can I go or what can I
45 do to find out when the events are taking place in
46 Anderson County that I can attend these.  Most of the
47 people that I know, they don’t know when the events are
48 coming on.  So that’s one thing they wanted to know.
49 And the second thing they want to know about aids
50 and grants.  If an aid or grant is very needed, if you



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
36

1 don’t know anything about it, it’s not going to do you
2 any good.  Right?  So you really need to know something
3 about it.  So what I’m asking the Council, tell me
4 where I can go to point these people to where they can
5 find out about the grants, the aids and events so that
6 it can make Anderson County a more fruitful place for
7 all of us.
8 Thank you very much.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Thayer?
10 JORDAN THAYER:  Mr. Chairman,
11 that is all the names on the list.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
13 Now, comments from Council members.  Ms. Wilson.
14 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
15 Chairman.  We have a great TV station that we have good
16 reports on I’ve been told.  I don’t get it on my AT&T
17 Direct TV channel, but I think Charter and Spectrum
18 carry it.  So that’s one avenue.  And we also have the
19 great Williamston Journal.  It’s a weekly paper and
20 you’ll probably learn more about what’s going on in
21 Anderson from that one publication than the Anderson
22 Independent, which is no longer independent or
23 Anderson.  
24 It has to be said that we have excellent grant
25 writing capability in the county.  There are lots of
26 different grants that come from different funding
27 sources, so I don’t know that there’s any one list. 
28 But for example, this past week we found out from the
29 Seniors Aging State Level Department of a grant that
30 was for like senior citizen facilities, and we’re
31 working on getting that for the Williamston Caroline
32 Community Center, and I’m sure there are others that
33 would want to apply, too.  And that came through ACOG. 
34 They sent that from the Department on Aging.
35 But anyway, thank you.  We’ve got a great group of
36 people working really hard.  And I appreciate it. 
37 Thank you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
39 Councilman Wright.
40 JOHN WRIGHT:  No, sir.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman
42 Elgin?
43 GREG ELGIN:   Just one
44 thing.  For my people from Big Water if you would just
45 hang on for a second if you can.  I’ll speak with you
46 afterwards.  But thank everybody for being here
47 tonight.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
49 Councilman Sanders?
50 BRETT SANDERS:  Thank you, Mr.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
37

1 Chairman.  I guess my main concern was the Long Road
2 issue.  I’m sympathetic for the people, but I’m a
3 little confused that that is a zoned area.  It goes
4 before the Planning Commission.  They have the ability
5 to speak for or against the project there.  If they
6 don’t like the outcome, they can appeal it.  And I’m
7 just curious.  And I don’t want to open up to where
8 everything that comes before the Planning Commission,
9 whether it’s denied or approved, who’s for it or
10 against it, it comes before Council and we don’t have
11 time to do Council stuff for listening to the same
12 thing over and over again that’s already been decided
13 upon.  Thank you.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
15 Councilman Jimmy Davis?
16 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
17 Chair.  I just want to once again congratulate our
18 Public Works Department.  I just returned today from an
19 APWA conference with my company down in Georgia, so I
20 understand and I want to congratulate them once again. 
21 That accreditation is really big, good stuff for our
22 county.
23 I was notified today that our -- the time frame for
24 the at-large application was extended to ---
25 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s
26 incorrect.  I’m going to address that in my comments.
27 JIMMY DAVIS:  Okay.  I didn’t
28 -- all right.  Thank you.  That’s all I had.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
30 Just got a couple of quick housekeeping things.  
31 First of all, I want to address the gentleman that
32 got up and spoke a minute ago about how do you find out
33 things.  The best way to find out things, and if you
34 don’t have his number I’ll be glad to get it for you. 
35 You’ve got a great Councilman working for that
36 district.  His name is Glenn Davis.  If y’all will get
37 in touch with Mr. Davis, I’m sure he’ll work out a plan
38 to keep y’all informed of grants or anything else.  He
39 does a great job.  So if you don’t have his number,
40 just see me or Mr. Burns after this meeting and I’ll
41 make sure you get it.  He’s out of the country.
42 The Planning Commission, we’ve got an at-large
43 member opening.  We’ve had about five -- I think five
44 or six applicants.  It has been closed.  Today was the
45 day.  We’ll be setting up a process, getting in touch
46 with those folks and with Council members.  It’ll be
47 the same process when we started this thing,
48 interviewing and setting up when they can come to
49 interview before Council, who wants to come.  All of
50 them didn’t come last time.  Interview, we’ll go



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - February 7, 2023
38

1 through.  And if we need to do another round of
2 interviews or what not, then we’ll vote on it.  That’s
3 how that’ll work.  And I’ll be in touch with y’all. 
4 Setting it up with staff and they can get these folks
5 up.  It probably won’t be next week, but we’ll get
6 something and make sure everybody’s schedule -- give
7 them some dates where people’s schedule can comply and
8 all.  That’s how that’ll work.  Just it did when we set
9 it up originally.
10 Second thing, I would like, if at all possible --
11 and a lot of this is going to depend on Mr. Harmon if
12 he’s back -- but I’d like to have a Council meeting
13 maybe toward the end of next week to work on a couple
14 of things like we’ve done before and let people come
15 and give their side of it, of the issue, and have just
16 a little workshop session on it.  One of them is a
17 traffic study.  The other one is the letter -- because
18 I’m the one that brought this up about talking with
19 staff and all, it’s about a letter from the Water and
20 Sewer Departments, about getting that.  Those two
21 issues.  We’re going to work on them, take a small
22 bite, come up with an ordinance if we feel like we want
23 to vote it up or down and move on to the next thing. 
24 But that’s my intentions.  And I’ll let y’all know and
25 see if we can make sure we can all make it.  We’ll get
26 in touch with y’all to see what your schedule is like
27 or what not, but like I said, it very much depends on
28 Mr. Harmon getting back and I can sit down with him and
29 talk with him on some things.  Me and him has already
30 talked about some things.  And some staff members.
31 And I appreciate everybody.  Thank y’all very much. 
32 Meeting be adjourned.
33
34 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:42 P.M.)



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-003 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTIES LOCATED WITHIN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
WHICH WERE A PART OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD INITIATIVE PROGRAM TO THE 
NEHEMIAH COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION CORPORATION; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, beginning in 2015, Anderson County participated in the Neighborhood 

Initiative Program (“NIP”), a federally funded program managed in South Carolina by the South 
Carolina Housing and Development Authority; 

 
WHEREAS, the NIP process required the involvement of a non-profit corporation and the 

County partnered with the Pelzer Heritage Commission to acquire properties which met the 
requirements of the NIP; 

 
WHEREAS, the properties were acquired and titled in the Pelzer Heritage Commission 

and deeded to the County for clean-up and maintenance of the properties; 
 
 WHEREAS, there are five (5) properties located within Anderson County at 11Q Street 
(TMS 123-13-13-003), 1400 Evergreen Street (TMS 123-13-08-012), 416 Rogers Street (TMS 123-
12-07-016, 708 Jackson Street (TMS 123-11-08-007), 309 Glenn Street (TMS 
123-06-19-007) which were part of the NIP;  
 

WHEREAS, the Nehemiah Community Revitalization Corporation desires to acquire 
these properties for residential use; and 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County desires to cancel its lease of those properties and agrees 

and requests that the properties to be deeded by the County of Anderson to the Nehemiah 
Community Revitalization Corporation. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 

assembled that: 
 
 1. Anderson County agrees to deed its properties located at 11Q Street (TMS 123-13-
13-003), 1400 Evergreen Street (TMS 123-13-08-012), 416 Rogers Street (TMS 123-12-07-016, 
708 Jackson Street (TMS 123-11-08-007), 309 Glenn Street (TMS 123-06-19-007) the Nehemiah 
Community Revitalization Corporation. The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any 
and all documents necessary to accomplish the transfer of these properties to the Nehemiah 
Revitalization Corporation. 
 
 2. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest and 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 



 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and 
enactment of by Anderson County Council. 
 
 

ORDAINED in a meeting duly assembled this 21st day of February, 2023. 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
Rusty Burns Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator Anderson County Council 

 
 
 
 
 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

 
 
First Reading: January 17, 2023 

 
Second Reading:   February 7, 2023     

 
Third Reading:      February 21, 2023 

 
Public Hearing: February 7, 2023 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-004 

AN ORDINANCE TO SELL A PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY TO ANDERSON 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 3; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

  

 WHEREAS, Anderson County owns real property, consisting of 0.484 acres, more or 
less, of land and a single building with Tax Map Number 134-03-04-002 located at 203 West 
Cruette Street, Iva, South Carolina 29655; and   

 WHEREAS, Anderson School District Three desires to purchase the below referenced 
real property, which is the current Iva Branch Library for the Anderson County Library System; 
and 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County previously purchased this property from Anderson 
School District Three, and Anderson County now desires to sell the property back to Anderson 
School District Three; and  

 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina, acting by and through its County Council 
as authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended, to lease, sell, or 
otherwise dispose of real and personal property. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. Anderson County desires to sell the following real property to Anderson School 
District Three: 

a. A parcel of land and a building situated at the intersection of Betsy Street and 
West Cruette Street, in the Town of Iva, bearing TMS 134-03-04-002. 

 
2. The county council is hereby dispensing with the requirements of Section 2-978, 

titled “Sale of real property,” Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina 
for this purchase only.  

 
3. The Anderson County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to execute the 

attached contract, identified as attachment A, in substantially the form attached 
hereto, or with such changes and revisions that do not materially adversely affect 
Anderson County and shall be recommended to them by legal counsel of the County, 
whose signatures thereon evidencing approval of all such changes and revisions.  
 

4. The Anderson County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to execute any 
deeds necessary to effectuate the sale of this parcel of real property as described 
herein. 
 



5. All other terms, provisions, sections, and contents of the Code of Ordinances, 
Anderson County, South Carolina not specifically affected hereby remain in full force 
and effect. 

 
6. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not 
affect the remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 
7. This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the public hearing and the third 

reading in accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South 
Carolina. 

 
 

ORDAINED in a meeting duly assembled this 21st day of February 2023. 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 
 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
                                                                           
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
First Reading:      January 17, 2023 
Second Reading:  February 7, 2023 
Third Reading:     February 21, 2023 
 
Public Hearing:    February 7, 2023 



Page 1 of 3 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  )   
      ) AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE AND  
COUNTY OF ANDERSON   )            SELL REAL ESTATE 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE AND SALE OF COMMERCIAL 
PROPERTY, made and entered into this 21st day of February 2023, by and between, Anderson 
County School District Number Three (hereinafter, whether one or more, referred to as 
Purchaser) and Anderson County, South Carolina (hereinafter, whether one or more, referred to 
as Seller). 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 
SUBJECT PROPERTY 

 

1.1 The Property.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, Purchaser agrees 
to buy and Seller agrees to sell and convey all of Seller’s right, title and interest in 
and to the Property being 0.484 acres, more or less, Betsy St., Iva, SC 29655 bearing 
Anderson County TMS #: 134-03-04-002 

 1.2 Conveyance of Property. Seller shall convey marketable title to the property 
to Purchaser in fee simple by general warranty deed, free from encumbrances. 

PURCHASE PRICE 
 
 2.1 Payment of Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Property shall be Nine 
Hundred Ninety-Two Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty-Nine Dollars ($992,869.00) Dollars, 
payable as follows:  
 

a) Earnest Money.  There will be no earnest money paid as part of this transaction.  
 

b) Balance of Purchase Price. The balance of the Purchase Price after application of the  
Earnest Money, if any, and subject to adjustments and pro-rations as set forth herein, shall be paid 
at Closing in wired funds or by certified or official bank check. 

  
SELLER’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND COVENANTS 

 
 In order to induce Purchaser to enter into this Agreement and to purchase the Property, in 
addition to warranties, representations, covenants, and undertakings contained elsewhere in this 
Agreement, Seller hereby makes the following representations, warranties, and covenants, each of 
which is material and is relied upon by Purchaser: Seller is the owner of good, marketable and 
insurable fee simple title to the Property.  Seller has the right, power, and authority to enter into 
this Agreement and to sell the Property in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof.  The 
Property is not subject to special taxes or assessments for roadway, sewer, or water improvements 



Page 2 of 3 
 

or other public improvements. No options or other contracts have been granted or entered into 
which are still outstanding and which give any other party a right to purchase any interest in the 
Property or any part thereof.  There are no leases in effect with respect to all or any part of the 
Property.  There are no condemnation or eminent domain proceedings pending against the Property 
or any part thereof and the Seller has received no notice, oral or written, of the desire of any public 
authority or other entity to take or use the Property or any part thereof. No payments for work, 
materials, or improvements furnished to the Property will be due or owing at Closing and no 
mechanics lien, materialmans lien, or other similar lien shall be of record against the Property at 
the time of Closing. There is no claim, litigation, or other proceeding, the probable outcome of 
which will have a material adverse effect on the value of the Property or its intended use. 
  

Property Sold “As Is.”  Subject to the Purchaser’s right to obtain an inspection as set forth 
below, the parties agree that this property is being sold “as is.”  Seller makes no warranty of any 
kind, either express or implied, of the condition of the property or any improvements thereon. 

CLOSING 
 

5.1  Closing Date.  The closing date of this sale shall occur on or before February 28, 
2023 ("closing date" or "closing") unless extended by mutual agreement of the parties.  Time is of 
the essence to this agreement.  The Closing shall take place at the office of Purchaser’s counsel:  
Cox & Cole, LLC, 32 E. Main St., Williamston, SC 29697. 
 
 5.2 Closing Costs and Pro-Rated Items. Buyer shall pay for the title insurance 
premiums due in connection with the issuance of Buyer’s title insurance policy. Buyer shall pay 
all deed and mortgage filing fees. Seller shall pay for the preparation of the deed, and transfer taxes 
assessed with respect to the deed conveying title of the Property to Buyer, and any withholding 
taxes required by the South Carolina Tax Commission. Buyer and Seller shall each pay their own 
legal fees related to the transaction contemplated hereby. All other costs of Closing shall by paid 
by Seller or Buyer in accordance with local real estate customs. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Real Estate Commissions.  No real estate commission is to be paid as part of this transaction.  
 

Miscellaneous.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this agreement shall not 
affect the other provisions of this agreement and this agreement shall be construed in all respects 
as if the invalid and unenforceable provision were omitted. For the convenience of the parties to 
this agreement, duplicate originals of this agreement may be executed and each such original shall 
be deemed to be an original instrument. This agreement shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina. Titles of the paragraphs and subparagraphs 
included in this agreement have been inserted as a matter of convenience for reference only and 
shall not affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms or provisions of it. This agreement 
and all documents and instruments incorporated by specific reference in this agreement are 
intended by the parties to be the final expression of their agreement and constitute a complete and 
exclusive statement of the terms of this agreement notwithstanding any representations or 
statements to the contrary made before. This agreement may not be amended, modified, altered or 



Page 3 of 3 
 

changed in any respect whatsoever, except by a further written agreement duly executed by the 
parties. Time is of the essence to this agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Seller hereto has executed this Agreement as of the 21st day of 
February, 2023.  
 
IN THE PRESENCE OF: 

SELLER: 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

 
        
 
 
______________________________        
Witness as to Seller     By: Rusty Burns 
       Its: Administrator  
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Purchaser hereto has executed this Agreement as of the 21st day 
of February, 2023 
 
 
 
IN THE PRESENCE OF: 

 
PURCHASER: 
Anderson County School District Number 
Three 

        
        
 
 
______________________________        
Witness as to Purchaser    By: Kathy Hipp 
       Its: Administrator 
 
 
 
 



  
 

NPDocuments:60675904.1  

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-005 
 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THEREOF 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcel(s) in Greenville County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council in meeting duly assembled that: 
 
 1.  Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the 
property located in Greenville County described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to 
Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the 
Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such property and Exhibit A and Exhibit B as so revised, 
without further action by either county. 
 
 2 All other terms, provisions, sections, and contents of the Code of Ordinances, 
Anderson County, South Carolina not specifically affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 
 4. This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the public hearing and the third 
reading in accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina. 
 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ___________, 2023.  
  



NPDocuments:60675904.1  

 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
                                                                           
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
First Reading:_________________ 
Second Reading:_______________ 
Third Reading:_________________ 
 
Public Hearing:___________________ 



NPDocuments:60675904.1  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 
Caraustar Mill Group, Inc. (Project Rebuild) 
 
All that piece, parcel or lot of land in Chick Springs Township, Greenville County, State of South Carolina, 
containing 34.27 acres, more or less, (including Southern Railway and county road rights of way) and having 
according to a plat prepared by Piedmont Engineering Service, dated March 1959, entitled “Survey for 
Carolina Paper Board Corp.”, and recorded in the Register of Deeds Office for Greenville County, South 
Carolina in Plat Book QQ at Page 43 and having according to said plat the metes and bounds shown thereon. 
 
Tax Map Nos. T010020101200 & T010020101205 
 
Essential Cabinetry Holdings, Inc. (Project President) 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situate, lying and being in the State of South Carolina, County 
of Greenville, being shown and designated as 29.21 acres, more or less, as shown on plat prepared for Timothy 
W. Scott, on September 2, 2003, and recorded in the ROD for Greenville County, SC in Plat Book 47-L at 
Page 24, and as shown on a more recent survey prepared by Romo Land Surveys, dated June 21, 2005, entitled 
"Property Survey for TW Scott, LLC," and recorded in the ROD Office for Greenville County, SC in Plat 
Book 50-A, page 42 on June 29, 2005, reference is hereby made to said plat for a more complete metes and 
bounds description.  
 
Being the same property conveyed to EC Simpsonville Funding Company, LLC by deed of NL Ventures X 
Grandview, L.L.C., dated July 23, 2019 and recorded on July 26, 2019 in the Greenville County Register of 
Deeds Office in Deed Book 2571, Page 4035.  
 
Tax Map No.: 0305000100401 
 
Fox Hill Greenville LLC (Project Fox Hill) 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel or tract of land, situate, lying and being located in the State of South Carolina, 
County of Greenville and shown and designated as Lot 10 on that certain plat entitled “Subdivision for S. 
L. Coleman Estate,” prepared by J. D. Calmes, #1346, dated September, 1960 and recorded September 21, 
1967 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Greenville County, South Carolina in Plat Book RRR, Page 
177, reference being made to said plat for a more complete and accurate description 
 
Tax Map No.: 0562010101310 
 
ALL those certain pieces, parcels or tracts of land situate, lying and being in the County of Greenville, State 
of South Carolina, shown and designated as Tract B (consisting of 1.42 acres) and Tract D (consisting of 
8.84 acres) on a Boundary Survey for Constance D. Cleveland-Nolan, dated August 23, 2019, prepared by 
EAS Professionals, and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds in Plat Book 1350 at Page 7. 
Reference is hereby made for a more complete metes and bounds description. 
 
Tax Map Nos.: 0562010102100 and 0562010102104 
 
 



NPDocuments:60675904.1  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
(i) that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of ______________, ______________, and 
______________, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council; and (ii) the public 
_______________.   
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ___________, 2023 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-006 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEASE REAL PROPERTY TO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF 
ANDERSON COUNTY, INC; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.  

WHEREAS, the Anderson County Code requires a public hearing prior to the lease of 
real property; and 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County is the current owner of a small parcel of land located at 
212 West Church Street in the City of Anderson and identified by tax map number 123-30-15-
005; and 

 WHEREAS, Habitat for Humanity of Anderson County, Inc., is a South Carolina 
nonprofit corporation registered with the State of South Carolina; and  

 WHEREAS, the property referenced will be used by Habitat for Humanity of Anderson 
County, Inc., for the purpose of operating as a nonprofit corporation.    

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1.  Anderson County desires to lease the following real property to Habitat for Humanity of 
Anderson County, Inc., for a nominal fee: 

 a. A parcel of land situated at 212 W. Church Street, Anderson, South Carolina 29624; 
 TMS No. 123-30-15-005.  
 
2. The Anderson County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to execute any 
documents necessary to effectuate the lease of this parcel of real property as described herein and 
in a form substantially similar to, and not materially different from, the lease agreement attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
3. All other terms, provisions, sections, and contents of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson 
County, South Carolina not specifically affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 
4. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
5. This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the public hearing and the third reading in 
accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina. 

 
ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2023. 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 



 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
                                                                           
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 
 
First Reading: _________________ 
Second Reading: _______________ 
Third Reading:  ________________ 
 
Public Hearing: ________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Contract under negotiation 



PPAB 8578945v2 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     )  RESOLUTION NO. 2023-006 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON  ) 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PURSUANT TO TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44 OF 
THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED, THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN 
AMENDED & RESTATED FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AND 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, TTI CONSUMER POWER TOOLS, INC. 
(FORMERLY ONE WORLD TECHNOLOGIES, INC.), AS SPONSOR, AND 
CERTAIN SPONSOR AFFILIATES; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County (the “County”) is a political subdivision of the State of South 

Carolina and, as such, has all powers granted to counties by the Constitution and the general law of this 
State; 

 
WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council, is authorized and empowered 

under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44, and Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-175, and 4-29-68 
of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (collectively, the “Act”) (i) to enter into 
agreements with qualifying companies to encourage investment in projects constituting economic 
development property through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina will be 
promoted by inducing new and existing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate and remain in 
the State and thus utilize and employ manpower and other resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such 
industry to accept certain fee payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes (“FILOT”) with respect to such 
investment; (iii) to create multi-county industrial or business parks with one or more contiguous counties 
and include certain properties therein, and, in its discretion, include within the boundaries of these parks 
the property of qualifying industries or businesses, and under the authority provided in the Act, the County 
has created previously a multi-county park with Greenville County, South Carolina through the Agreement 
for Development of Joint County Industrial and Business Park dated as of November 16, 2010, as amended 
(“Park Agreement”); and (iv) to provide credits to qualifying companies to offset qualifying infrastructure 
related expenditures pursuant to the Act; 

 
WHEREAS, in 2015 TTI Consumer Power Tools, Inc. (formerly One World Technologies, Inc.), 

a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), approached the County with its plans to establish one or more 
commercial or industrial facilities in the County and expand one or more existing facilities in the County 
through the acquisition, lease, construction, and purchase of certain land, buildings, furnishings, fixtures, 
apparatuses, and equipment (the "Project"), which was expected to result in new investment in real and 
personal property of approximately $85,725,000 in the County;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Resolution adopted April 7, 2015, the County Council identified the 
Project, as required under the Act, and pursuant to County Council Ordinance No. 2015-011 adopted May 
8, 2015, (“FILOT Ordinance”), authorized (i) the execution and delivery of that certain Fee in Lieu of Tax 
and Economic Development Agreement (“Fee Agreement”) with the Company; (ii) the inclusion of the 
Project in the Park, pursuant to the Park Agreement; (iii) the grant of certain special source revenue credits 
in amounts as more fully described in the Fee Agreement; (iv) the extension of the initial investment period 
under the Fee Agreement by five (5) years, resulting in an investment period that ends ten (10) years after 
the Commencement Date as defined in the Fee Agreement; (v) the extension of the term of the Fee 
Agreement by ten years for a total term of forty (40) years for each phase of investment; (vi) the waiver of 
any fees applied by the County's Building and Codes Department, up to $250,000, as described in the Fee 
Agreement; and (vii) other incentives further described in the Fee Agreement; 



  
PPAB 8578945v2 

WHEREAS, in 2017, the Company approached the County regarding its desire to expand the 
Project by making additional investments in the County, including additional real property improvements 
and personal property expenditures related to the construction of certain office and research and 
development facilities at the Project site (“2017 Expansion Project”); and due to the additional investments 
contemplated for the 2017 Expansion Project, the County approved, by County Council Ordinance No. 
2017-012 adopted May 2, 2017, that certain First Amendment to the 2015 Fee Agreement (“2017 First 
Amendment” and, together with the 2015 Fee Agreement, the 2017 Fee Agreement) providing for enhanced 
SSRC benefits to the Company; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2020, the Company approached the County regarding its desire to formally add 

multiple legal entities to the 2017 Fee Agreement. The County formally approved multiple sponsor affiliates 
pursuant to that certain County Council Resolution #R2020-020 dated August 25, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2020, the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates approached the County regarding its 

desire to again expand the Project by making additional investments in the County consisting of 
approximately $35,000,000 in Economic Development Property (“2020 Expansion Project and, together 
with the 2015 Project and the 2017 Expansion Project, the “Project”); and in recognition of the 
overperformance of the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates, the County formally approved Ordinance No. 
2020-18 dated December 1, 2020 amending the 2017 Fee Agreement to provide for enhanced SSRC 
benefits to the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates as described in more detail in that certain Amended & 
Restated FILOT Agreement dated December 1, 2020 (“2020 Fee Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, in 2021, the Company approached the County regarding its desire to formally add 
additional legal entities to the 2020 Fee Agreement and to add additional parcels of real property to the 
legal description contained in Exhibit A to the 2020 Fee Agreement. The County formally approved these 
amendments pursuant to those certain County Council Resolutions #2021-045 (September 21, 2021) and 
#2021-049 (October 19, 2021); and 

WHEREAS, under Section 1.1 of the 2020 Fee Agreement, Exhibit A to the 2020 Fee Agreement, 
which describes the real property associated with the Project, may be supplemented from time to time and 
pursuant to Section 4.6 of the 2020 Fee Agreement and Section 12-44-40(K) of the Act, the 2020 Fee 
Agreement may be amended in writing by an agreement lawfully entered into between the parties; and 

WHEREAS, the Company desires to sell that certain parcel listed in Exhibit A to the 2020 Fee 
Agreement and identified by TMS# 218-00-01-039 (“Parcel”) to an unrelated third party and has requested 
the County take formal action to remove the Parcel from the 2020 Fee Agreement, effective for tax year 
2024 and beyond; and 

 
WHEREAS, the approximately 100.15 acre parcel of real property identified by TMS # 169-00-

02-003-000, which was previously added to the legal description in Exhibit A to the 2020 Fee Agreement, 
was subdivided into two parcels: one of approximately 59.13 acres identified by TMS # 169-00-02-007-
000 and a second of approximately 41.02 acres identified by TMS # 169-00-02-003-00 (“Subdivision); and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Council desires to amend Exhibit A to the 2020 Fee Agreement to reflect 

the removal of the Parcel, effective for tax year 2024 and beyond, and to reflect the Subdivision; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of an Amendment to the Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes and Incentive Agreement, 
attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Amendment”), which is reflective of the removal of the Parcel and the 
Subdivision and which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 

 



  
PPAB 8578945v2 

WHEREAS, it appears that the Amendment above referred to, which is now before this meeting, 
is in appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Council as follows: 

 
Section 1.   Authorization to Execute and Deliver Amendment.  The form, terms, and provisions 

of the Amendment presented to this meeting, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and filed with the Clerk to 
County Council are hereby approved, and all of the terms, provisions, and conditions thereof are hereby 
incorporated herein by reference as if the Amendment was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chair 
of County Council is authorized and directed to execute the Amendment with any minor modifications and 
revisions as may be approved by the Chair of County Council, the County Administrator, and the County 
Attorney, in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is authorized and 
directed to attest the same; and the Chair of County Council, the County Administrator, and the County 
Attorney are further authorized and directed to deliver the executed Amendment to the Company.  

 
 Section 2. Further Acts.  The County Council authorizes the County Administrator, other County 

staff, and the County Attorney, along with any designees and agents who any of these officials deems necessary 
and proper, in the name of and on behalf of the County (each an “Authorized Individual”), to take whatever 
further actions, and enter into whatever further agreements, as any Authorized Individual deems to be 
reasonably necessary and prudent to effect the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 Section 3.  General Repealer.  All ordinances, resolutions, and their parts in conflict with this 

Resolution are, to the extent of that conflict repealed.  
 
 Section 4.  Severability.  Should any part, provision, or term of this Resolution be deemed 

unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding or 
determination shall not affect the rest and remainder of the Ordinance or any part, provision or term thereof, 
all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 
 

 
  



  
PPAB 8578945v2 

Done in meeting duly assembled this 21st day of February, 2023.    
 
 
      ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL: 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
            
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
      
Renee Watts 
Anderson County Clerk to Council 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
   
 
 
:   

 
 



  
PPAB 8578945v2 

EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION 
 

Amendment to the Amended & Restated FILOT Agreement 
 

[ATTACHED] 
  



  
PPAB 8578945v2 

AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED FEE-IN-LIEU OF 
AD VALOREM TAXES AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, TTI CONSUMER 
POWER TOOLS, INC. (FORMERLY ONE WORLD TECHNOLOGIES, INC.),  

AND CERTAIN SPONSOR AFFILIATES 
  

This amendment (“Amendment”) amends that certain Amended and Restated Fee In Lieu Of Ad 
Valorem Taxes And Economic Development Agreement originally dated December 1, 2020, as 
subsequently amended ("A&R Fee Agreement") entered into by and between Anderson County, South 
Carolina ("County"), TTI Consumer Power Tools, Inc. (formerly One World Technologies, Inc.), a 
Delaware corporation authorized to conduct business in South Carolina, along with its affiliated and related 
entities and assigns, as Sponsor (collectively, the "Company"), and certain Sponsor Affiliates.  This 
Amendment is hereby entered into and made effective this 21st day of February, 2023.  
 

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020, the County and the Company entered into the A&R Fee 
Agreement providing certain economic development incentives to the Company in exchange for the 
Company's commitment to make substantial investments in the County; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County and the Company now wish to amend the A&R Fee Agreement to reflect 
the removal of that certain parcel of real property identified by TMS # 218-00-01-039 from the legal 
description appearing in Exhibit A to the A&R Fee Agreement and to reflect the subdivision of that certain 
parcel of real property of approximately 100.15 acres identified by TMS # 169-00-02-003-000 into two 
separate parcels of approximately 59.13 acres (now identified by TMS # 169-00-02-003-000) and 41.02 
acres (now identified by TMS # 169-00-02-007-000); and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the A&R Fee Agreement is hereby amended by replacing the legal 
description attached as Exhibit A to the A&R Fee Agreement in its entirety with the legal description 
attached to this Amendment as Exhibit A. 

 
 
 

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE 
  



  
PPAB 8578945v2 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council has caused this 
Amendment to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council  and the County 
Administrator and to be attested to by the Clerk of County Council. The Company has caused this 
Amendment to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to County Council 
 
 

FOR THE COMPANY 
 
TTI CONSUMER POWER TOOLS, INC.: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
by: ____________________________________ 
      Its Duly Authorized Representative 
 

 



PPAB 8578945v2 

EXHIBIT A TO AMENDMENT 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
 
TMS# Approximate Acreage 
143-00-04-016-000 292.23 
143-00-04-002-000 124.90 
169-00-05-001-000 6.12 
169-00-05-002-000 .46 
169-00-03-007-000 3.87 
169-00-03-006-000 89.88 
218-00-01-038-000 15.62 
218-00-01-001-000 12.84 
218-00-01-040-000 .41 
169-00-03-004-000 12.36 
169-00-02-003-000 59.13 
169-00-02-007-000 41.02 

 



MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SC AND HARTWELL 

RESORT, LLC 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into by and between Anderson 
County, South Carolina (“County”) and Hartwell Resort, LLC this ___ day of ______, 2023. 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County and Hartwell Resort, LLC intend to operate a sewer 

collection system and pump station to provide wastewater services to the Hartwell Resort Tiger 
Cove project and to the County’s site at Green Pond Landing (the “Project”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Project will support facilities that enhance the use of Lake Hartwell’s 

resources and, at the same time, protect the water quality of Lake Hartwell; 
 

WHEREAS, the County and Hartwell Resort desire to work together for their mutual 
benefit; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County has authority under Title 4 South Carolina Code of Laws to 

enter into contractual relationships to provide sewer services within the County. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Hartwell Resort is responsible for the design and construction of the pump 
station, force main and the Anderson County 8” gravity system, as shown on plan sheet page 
CU101 to service the Project and the Green Pond Facility. Anderson County will review and 
approve the design of the pump station and force main.  The Force Main will be a six (6) inch force main.  
Capacity in the pump station will be reserved for future projects at Green Pond Landing.  

 
2. The County will contribute $355,000.00 towards the design and construction of 

the pump station and force main. 
 
3. The County will be granted a permanent twenty-five (25) foot utility easement 

by Hartwell Resort, LLC to service the Green Pond facility upon a route to be approved by the 
County. 

 
4. The County will own and operate the pump station and force main after 

construction, inspection, testing and DHEC approval for placement into service.  Hartwell 
Resort agrees to execute all real property documents for placement of ownership of the pump 
station and force main into the name of the County. 

 
5. This MOU includes the following parcels controlled by Hartwell Resort: TMS 

Nos. 047-03-01-007, 047-03-01-006, and 047-03-01-004.  Anderson County will waive 
capacity fees in an amount not to exceed $180,000 from the parcels identified in the paragraph.   

 



2 
 

6. The wastewater collection system to service the parcels identified in paragraph 
5 above will be owned and operated by Hartwell Resort or its successor in interest.  Anderson 
County will not accept this collection system for operation and maintenance because it will not 
be built to County standards.  Hartwell Resort and its successors and assigns will remain 
responsible for its collection system and for payment of the cost of transportation and treatment 
of the wastewater produced from this development. 

 
7. Hartwell Resort and its successors and assigns must maintain its collection 

system to prevent infiltration/inflow into the system or other impacts to the system that may 
affect proper operation of the pump station and force main.  Failure to properly maintain the 
collection system may result in additional service fees and/or fines.  

 
8. This MOU constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and there are no 

collateral contracts or agreements between the Parties related to the subject matter of this MOU.  
 
   

9. This MOU may be amended or modified only by written agreement signed by the 
Parties. 

10. The rights and objectives under this MOU are not assignable by the individual 
Parties. 

 
11. This MOU shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of South 

Carolina, without regard to conflicts of laws principles. 
 

12. In the event a dispute arises under this MOU, the Parties shall engage in non- 
binding mediation before any party files a lawsuit. Any suit must be filed in the Circuit Court 
for Anderson County as non-jury matter, and the Parties hereby WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A 
JURY TRIAL. 

 
13. In the event that any term or provision of this MOU shall be declared invalid or 

unenforceable by a Court of Competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this MOU shall be 
considered severable and shall remain binding and enforceable. 

 

14. The Parties to this MOU hereby certify that they have authority to enter into this 
MOU. 

  



3 
 

 
 

ENTERED into on the date written hereinabove. 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

BY:  
Its:  Printed 
Name:  

 
 

Hartwell Resort, LLC 
 

BY:  
Its:  Printed 
Name:  





















Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District 5 

Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District 4 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
Council District 1 

Glenn A. Davis 
Council District 2 

Greg Elgin
Council District 3  

Jimmy Davis 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 

    ________ 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | 864.260.1039 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 

RECREATION FUND APPROPRIATIONS 
APPLICATION 

WHAT DISTRICT(S) ARE YOU REQUESTING FUNDING FROM: 

DISTRICT:  _______ 

Mail/Email/Fax to: 
Anderson County Council Clerk 

P.O. Box 8002, Anderson, SC 29622 
rdwatts@andersoncountysc.org 

Fax: 864-260-4356

1. Name of entity requesting recreation fund appropriation:

2. Amount of request (If requesting funds from more than one district, annotate
amount from each district):

3. The purpose for which the funds are being requested:

4. Is the entity a non-profit corporation in good standing with the South Carolina
Secretary of State?  If so, please attach evidence of that good standing.

5. Contact Person:
Mailing Address:
Phone Number:
Email:

6. Statement as to whether the entity will be providing matching funds:

I certify that the forgoing is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and 
that I am authorized to make this application on behalf of the above-named 
entity. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature                                                   Print Name                                             Date 

South Carolina State Chili Cook-off Championship

$2500

Adverting, promotions, operations

Yes, 501 C3

Gene Jameson

PO Box 111, Belton, SC 29627

864-940-9632

genejameson@bellsouth.net

no

Gene Jameson                                               2/15/2023






















































	Agenda CCM February 21, 2023
	3 Minutes CCM 2/7/2023
	5a Ordinance 2023-003 Transfer Real Property Nehemiah Community Revitalization
	5b Ordinance 2023-004 Iva Library
	7a Ordinance 2023-005 MCIP 2010 Park
	7b Ordinance 2023-006 Lease Habitat for Humanity
	8a Resolution 2023-006 Amend FILO 
	9 MOU Hartwell Resort, LLC
	10 Transfers for Council vote
	11a Appropriation Request Vets Helping Vets
	11b Appropriation Request SC State Chili Cook-off
	12a Building & Codes Report
	12b Budget Transfers
	12c Paving
	12d Special Projects



